CIBOLA COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez Martha Garcia Christine Lowery

Chairman 1% Vice Chairman 2" Vice Chairman
Ralph Lucero Robert Windhorst
Commissioner Commissioner

Regular Commission Meeting
Thursday, June 24", 2021
5:00 p.m.
Cibola County Commission Chambers

PURSUANT TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH ORDER DATED JUNE 2", 2021, LIMITING PUBLIC GATHERINGS IN THE STATE, THE
FOLLOWING MEETING ATTENDANCE CAPACITY RULES APPLY:
» RED LEVEL (very high risk): the meeting will not be physically open to the public. Members of the public may attend
and listen to the meeting via Facebook.

» GREEN LEVEL (medium risk): the meeting is limited to 20 members of the public, inclusive of public officials &
employees. Admission will be on a first come first serve basis. All other members of the public may attend and
listen to the meeting via Facebook.

» TURQUOISE LEVEL (low risk): the meeting will be open to the public. Members of the public may also attend and
listen to the meeting via Facebook.

ALL OTHER PUBLIC HEALTH ORDER COVID-19 REQUIREMENTS AND FIRE MARSHAL CAPACITY LIMITS APPLY. ALL
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WILL BE ABLE TO ATTEND AND LISTEN TO THE MEETING VIA FACEBOOK LIVE AT THE
FOLLOWING LINK: https://www.facebook.com/CibolaCountyCommission/

Call to Order

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance
Prayer

Approval of Agenda

ol o

6. Public Comment

The Public has the opportunity to provide comment on any subject during the public comment period.
Speaker’s comments will be limited to three minutes unless the Board of County Commissioners requests
more information. The time limit is given in an effort to allow public input but also to move the agenda
forward in a prompt yet efficient manner.

Public comment may be made in person or via email, written comment will be entered and/or read into the
meeting minutes (if less than 3 minutes) by emailing comments to: iphoracek@co.cibola.nm.us

The Deadline for written public comments to be received is Wednesday, June 23™, 2021, at 4:00 PM.
Emailed public comment must contain the author’s name and physical address.

Page 1 of 2



7. Minutes
a. Minutes from May 27", 2021, Regular Commission Meeting

8. Reports
a. Budget and Finance Report- Kate Fletcher-County Manager & Paul Ludi-Finance Director

9. Presentation
a. Outstanding Service Award-Dustin Middleton-Presenter

10. New Business — Action May Be Taken
a. Consideration of Resolution 21-33 FY?21 Budget Adjustment No. 10
b. Consideration of Resolution 21-34 Records Retention Policy
c. Consideration of Resolution 21-35 Tyler Software Cleanup of County Capital Asset Inventory of
Real and Personal Property
d.  Consideration of RFP 2021-005 for Annual Financial Audit Service
¢. Consideration to approve requisitions over $20,000
a.) 2021 Ford F-150 Crew Cab STX Black-Clerks-$37,741.00

11. Executive Session-1 Item-ai.
Pursuant to Section 10-15-1 (H) the following matters may be discussed in closed session:
Motion and roll call vote to go into executive session and that, pursuant to New Mexico State Statute
Section 10-15-1, only the following matters will be discussed in closed session:

a. Pending or threatened litigation 10-15-1 H) (7))
i City of Albuquerque Et al. v. TRD

b. Real Property 10-15-1 (H) (8)

c. Personnel 10-15-1 (H) (2)

d. other specific limited topics that are allowed or authorized under the stated statute;
Motion and Roll Call Vote to Return to Regular Session

Motion and Roll Call Vote that Matters Discussed In Closed Session Were Limited To Those Specified In
Motion For Closure, and That No Final Action Was Taken, As Per New Mexico Statutes Section 8§10-15-1.

12. New Business-Action May Be Taken
a. Direction to Staff Regarding City of Albuquerque Et al. v. TRD

13. Announcements

The Next Regular Commission Meeting will be July 22" 2021 at 5:00p.m. via FB Live. The Cibola County
Offices will be closed Monday, July 5", 2021, in observation of the Independence Day Holiday.

14. Adjournment

Page 2 of 2



05.27.2021

Regular Commission
Meeting Minutes




Regular Commission
Meeting Thursday,
May 27, 2021
5:00 p.m.
Cibola County Commission Chambers

1. 11 rder

5:00 pm
2. Roll Call

4 Present 1 Absent
3. PI f Allegian

Commissioner Lowery

4. Prayer
Commissioner Lucero

5. Approval of Agenda
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Windhorst.
Seconded by Commissioner Lowery - 4 affirmative.

6. Publi mien
The Public has the opportunity to provide comment on any subject during the public comment period.
Speaker’s comments will be limited to three minutes unless the Board of County Commissioners
requests more information. The time limit is given in an effort to allow public input but also to move the

agenda forward in a prompt yet efficient manner.
NONE
7. Minutes
a. Minutes from April 22", 2021 Regular Commission Meeting
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Lucero.
Seconded by Commissioner Lowery - 4 affirmative
8. Reports
a. Budget and Finance Report- Kate F letcher-County Manager & Paul Ludi-Finance Director

9. New Business — Action May Be Taken

a. Consideration of Resolution 21-28 Budget Adjustment Number 9
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Lucero.
Seconded by Commissioner Windhorst - 4 affirmative.

b. Consideration of Resolution 21-32 FY22 Interim Budget
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Windhorst.
Seconded by Commissioner Lowery - 4 affirmative.

¢. Consideration of Resolution 21-29 Supporting the Eligibility and Intent of Cibola County to Submit
an Application to NMDOT for the New Mexico Transportation Project Fund (TPF) for CR-1 Bridge
and Road Improvements Project
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Lowery.
Seconded by Commissioner Windhorst - 3 affirmative.
Commissioner Lucero — Voted NO

d. Consideration of Resolution 21-30 Disposition of Plotter in Rural Addressing and Planning Offices
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Windhorst.
Seconded by Commissioner Lucero - 4 affirmative

Page 1 of 3



e. Consideration of Resolution 21-31 Road Review Committee Board Appointments
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Windhorst.
Seconded by Commissioner Lowery - 4 affirmative

f.  Consideration of Core Civic Contract
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Lucero.
Seconded by Commissioner Windhorst - 4 affirmative

g. Consideration to approve requisitions over $20,000
a.) Lobo Canyon Water Project Materials. Labor and Equipment-San Rafael Fire Dept.-
$28,625.77
b.) HVAC Upgrade-TLC-$1,598,807.16
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Lucero.
Seconded by Commissioner Windhorst - 4 affirmative

10. Executive Session
Pursuant to Section 10-15-1 (H) the following matters may be discussed in closed session:
*Motion and roll call vote to go into executive session and that, pursuant to New Mexico State Statute
Section 10-15-1, only the following matters will be discussed in closed session:

Motion to approve made by Commissioner Lucero .
Seconded by Commissioner Lowery - 4 affirmative

a. Pending or threatened litigation 10-15-1 H@?
a. Cibola County v. TRD

b. Real Property 10-15-1 (H) (8)

c. Personnel 10-15-1 (H) (2)

d. other specific limited topics that are allowed or authorized under the stated statute;
*Motion and Roll Call Vote to Return to Regular Session_

Motion to approve made by Commissioner Windhorst.
Seconded by Commissioner Lowery - 4 affirmative

*Motion and Roll Call Vote that Matters Discussed In Closed Session Were Limited To Those Specified In

Motion For Closure, and That No Final Action Was Taken, As Per New Mexico Statutes Section §10-
15-1.

Motion to approve made by Commissioner Windhorst.
Seconded by Commissioner Lucero - 4 affirmative

11. New Business-Action May Be Taken

a. Direction to Staff Regarding Cibola County v. TRD

12. Announcements
The Next Regular Commission Meeting will be June 24th, 2021 at 5:00p.m. via FB Live. The Cibola County
Offices will be closed Monday, May 31*, 2021 in observation of the Memorial Day Holiday.

13. Adjournment 6:39pm

Page 2 of 3



PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 24® of June, 2021

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez, Chairman

Martha Garcia, 1° Vice Chairman

Christine Lowery, 2" Vice Chairman

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Date:

Michelle E. Dominguez, Cibola County Clerk

SEAL

Page 3 of 3



Budget and

Finance Report

As of May 315t 2021




Jsbeuel A1uno) 1ayn1a|4 aie)y

Iauoissiwwo) ‘019307 ydjey
I3UoIssiwo)) s1oypuipy Ueqoy
1eyD 3dIA pu ‘Alamo sunsuyd
A1BYD-3DIA 5T ‘eIdJeD) eyl
uewuiey) ‘zauuo] |siue(

TZOoT "7Z 3unf
bunsspy uoissiwwon

Ajuno) ejoqi>

L1861 "Ls3 .

OJIX3IW M3AN







&

'$19bpnq J1vy3 Jo dn uesd pus Jeak oy sjuswisnlpe 32bpng
oleda.d pue mainai 01 parsanbal usaq aney siuswpedaq ||V

v4a Aq panroadde 10bpng wiisyuy

iqOr 1ealD *|j]am se ,sTe Aej\ ybnoayl pajiduodal Junodde

bunresado xe| ay1 sey ad10 S,491nseal] ay3 ul zanbuiwoq

eunsilyD pue junodde bunesadQ uley 104 1STE Ae ybnouya
UBQ 943 01 Pa|1dU0d3. 51 91O S, 19beURIN Y3 Ul J|9S APUIAN o

obedgam
Juswinieds ddueulq uo pa1edo| s19bpng g spoday 9dueuld 4

sajepdn Aquno) ejoqid




CTIY'99ES | TLL'ETLS | TZT'YSES | LTE'TOES | £64'80vS | PIE'GSTS | $OV'S6ES | 899'89ES | 856°7ZES 66°ELVS | 765655 | TLYTSES
POT'VEES | LO0'BLES | 699'VTES | ETO'ESES | 0BZ'9EVS | TZ6'TVES | 60S'PYES | LOE'998S | z61'S6ES | 8v9'Z/eS | +BE'0LES | 99°88€S
BSS'L8ES | SOT'6/ZS | OGE'06ES | 996'vOVS | L9v'L9VS | SO6°49pS | EOE'LTvS | SY6'TSHS | 007'2Z2SS | S98'TOES | 6IL'60bS | T€6'60vS s|en1ay aLA 0207
9S5°7ST$ | 9SS'TSTS | 9SS'TSTS | 9SS°ZSTS | 95S°ZSTS | 955°ZST$ | 955°ZSTS | 9ss'zste | 9sszers 9SSTSTS | 99S°ZSTS | 9SS°TSTS 123png pa1alold TZ0Z
SET'LSYS | SETLSYS | SET'LSVS | SETLSYS | SETUSYS | SeTLSwS | SeT'svS | sezLsvS | Sezisws SETLSYS | SET'LSPS | SETLSPS [suondnpayino/m1a3png ‘loid TZ0Z

SZ0°88Y$ | ©TO'08YS | 6LYT 6ES | TOV'SGES | SYZ'EsyS | TI0'TPYS | SL6'ESPS | £5798ES STS90PS | 8S8ZZYS | 8LI'6HYS | OTH'OvES

aunf [dy yolep Aeniga4 Alenuer | Jaquwadaq | JaquwianoN | 12g010 gelsdas 1sn8ny Alng

ES
‘e1ep Jayieb am se | 39 bunsnlpe aie pue 3s10m ay3 10) pauue|d s\ “Tzoz-0z07

@ 1e3A |edsyy 1oy (uoidafoud sejnbai Jo 0452) 2/90Eg T$ pe1abpng am ‘peaisu 000°00TS
000°002ZS

000°00€S

000°00tS

;QD MOYs jou pip mH|D_>OUt 1eaA 104 ONw~®w¢.mm _uwu.wmﬁnn_ 3AeY pINo 0000 mm

SPENUOo) Yiim suoiinqriisig 149 000°009$

3 000°00LS

‘slendy 07 ‘6T Ad
000°008S




TZAd 0ZAd 6TA 8TA4 LTA 9TAd

L Y
00°000°000°TS
00°000°000°ZS
00°000°000°€S

eg'1se’gss’es M 00°000°000%$

- T6VLILLEVS 9T T8s'ze0'be .
00°000°000°S
b2 66 TOV VS »

YTV TL6'S 00°000°000°9%
vy VI VLTSS
SIeoA m:._. A9NQ 139




TCAd 0CAd 6TAd 8TA4 LTAA 9TA4

_ _ 2€'675°962$
| \ 01'S90°9£€$
. ¥Z'908'v9€S

© G9'T6/'99€S
25 VST YIYS

02 TOZ'TEYS

149 Ajyjuolp aSesany

00°000°0SS
00°00000TS
00°000°0STS
00°000°00ZS
00°000°05¢S
00°000°00€S
00°000°0S€S
00°000°00%S
00°000°05tS
00°000°00S$




- F199D

S &
« .nu Ny

& &

vESTLTS y
. 8
668°S6TS 116°081S
. NG
LTZE'ELTS P,

e

625'€8TS | 6Lv'78TS | £/6'€81S \ 7
1s6°01Z$ g\

; \ 000°00ZS
los'eers  PIE0ITS mmm.mv £abats : T/8'TTTS
rotz6rg  LELLGTS  yu9%s1s 877'SSTS
. COV'S6ES gc7'98eg

6609L1$
9/2'9/1S 966'8/TS
oTb'9res —7
\
\

000'00£$
\) 169°c2¢$ /]
\ : / | 08€°06€ ﬁ
“ _ 6LV T6ES 190TvvS STS90vS \ 855'£8¢€ ;
_. SYZ'e8rS SL6'E8PS 958 220 S BUT ebD
1 )
| vTo'08ys T68°ELSS — > 7

# 5 ooo.oovm
\ wmmgmm\ \
€0E“LIPS

/ 1€6'601S 0000055
Sv6 ¢SvS \ 6TL°601S

y
00Z'22S$ _/

— |
A4\ "oy s0pg
SOT'GLTS

_ \ S06°29¥S
) > Bl
vSTTI9$ 859'9y9¢ | 8522299

| ¥19°08S$ > ﬁ
6£9°6TLS wqm\wmw\w,Nwdemw ”
TTLLS9S
- S86'TVLS

ZZv'e59S |
v62'82LS S

SZ0'88YS wvwxmmmm\~

|
£90'795$

000009$

668755 .
\. NG - 000°00L$

£28°G295 ) 08T'9V9S | "Ny 9559595

‘ : 8vy'v69

£85v79$ 0v9'62LS S |

€8V LVLS 000°008$

.I ele Ot A4

000'006$

l‘
14D TZA4d U0 QIAOD 0 S1234)9 pue
(sidasuaiu)) sydoennuon Suipnjdoul 14D 19N 0ZA4 }0 uosiiedwo)




S|endy 1707 ‘Te Aew m  uondafold 3128png 1707 m

saxe| juanbulaq soxe| uann)y

000°LYES 000'000°T5

0ZS'vEYVS

000'00ST$

000'0007S

YSL'84L°T
s 000°00SCS

20e'578°TS -

suonda||o) xel Ayiadouy




F €9'€86'€6L'6$ 6T'EZE'L00'ES 78'90€'108°CT$ _ (2866 T193) (ozzve'ses c1$) €E'8TL69L'9TS LT°00£'v00'9$ 68'0€5'992'8% =S1V10L
— (s 2s€'98) 00'0$ (zs°25€°98) h 00°0$ (8z'sTZ'€6$) TT°0L0'YS$ 00'0$ 00'0$ S10310¥d AV1LNO TVLIdVD - TS9
— SS'9ET'LYTS 00'0$ SS'9ET'LYTS * 00'0$ (ve'ETZ'€8S) 00°0$ 80'€ST°98% 00'0$ 18'962'vvT$ ANN4 VSIVYddV3Y %T - 029
00'0$ 00'0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ 00'0$ 00'0$ 00°0$ INVY90Yd IINVITdINOD - ST9
00'0$ 67'v8L'TvTs$ (06'5£9°605$) (66°S9Y°0T9‘€$) £2'760'V2ETS S6'EE8'8E0'TS 00'0$ 00'0$ Y3LIN3D NOILN3L3IA - bT9
00'0$ 000$ 00'0$ 00'0$ 00'0$ (9v'62p'T$) IV'6ZY'TS 00'0$ 00°0$ 1N41LNV38 8 NV31D OJIXIN M3N - ZT9
00'0$ €L°09T'€Z$ (61°291$) (£9°egz'0v$) 00'0$ 00'0$ 00'0$ 65'955'€9% Nv3¥ng SNSN3J - 019
| vy'9zz'eeTS 00'0$ vr'9zT'eTTS 00°0$ (T8'v82°09T$) 00°0% ST'TT0'v8Z$ 000$ 00'0$ AINVYD S,NOILII T3 1DV SIHVYD - 609
00°0$ 9v'T08'0ST$ 00'0$ (v1°989°09€2$) 00°000°09% 09'L8Y'TSY'T$ 00'0$ 00°0$ INVY¥90¥d LIV S3¥V) - 809
90'298'TTTS 000$ 90'Z98'TTTS 00'0$ 00'0$ 90'798‘TTTS 00'0$ 00'0% 00°0$ 12310¥d T1IH ZLYVND - £09
— 88'€95$ 00'0$ 88'€95$ 00°0$ (€°200°STS) (00°000°0Z$) 00°00v'82$ 00'0$ STTLT'LS NOIL)310¥d LNIWIDHYOINI MV - S09
— EV'V8E6YS 00'0$ EV'VBE'6YS 00°0$ (81°T06°0£LT$) 00°000°€$ 87'2LS'9TT$ 00'0$ EE'ETL'06$ TVHSYVIN 3¥14 - ¥09
— 00'S8L$ 000 00'S8L$ 00'0$ (ot°281$) 00'0$ 00°0$ 00'0$ 01'2L6% LNIWIDVNVIN ADNIDYINI - £09
f 00°0$ 000$ 00'0$ (65'855°993) (€0'9v8'65€$) 00'02£'66% 86'ETT'TS ¥9'0£5'STES 00'0$ SNVO1 V4NN - S£S
00°0$ 0Z'68T'E6T'T$ 00°0% (vs'8L1°€5L8) 00°0$ VLLIEIVY'TS 00'0$ 00°000°005$ ANN4 3WOINI ANOE §+T0Z - 04S
00'0$ ¥8'88€88Y$ 00°0$ (6£°089°055$) 00°0$ 07'SL9'SE8S 00'0$ EV'V6E'E0TS ANN4 INOINI NOE VHTOZ - 695
000$ 00'0$ 00°0$ 0S'0$ 0003 (96°69%°9T¥$) 9v'LS$ 00°ZTY'9TYS 00°0$ NYHL SSVd-SVOI - ¥0S
08'T60'€9$ 00'0$ 08'160°€9$ 00'0$ (z6'v81°85$) 00'0$ 00'vTE0VS 00'0$ 7£'296°08% ONITI3/9NIAY0I3Y HY¥3I 1D - 00§
8Lv26°LLLS 00'0$ 8LVT6'LLLS 00'0$ (ez'z88'c$) (00°000°2v$) 96'0LY'TLTS 00'0$ S0'9€€°959% NOILI310¥d 3414 ALNNOD - SLY
L9'TIS' VLTS 000$ L9'TIS'VLTS 00°0$ (ST'8vS202$) v'9LE'8S ¥5'929'8€7$ 00'0$ ¥8'90T‘0€T$ NOILNGIY1SIA IMA - 657
00°0$ 00'0% 00°0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ (vv9Lg'8$) 00'0$ 00'0$ Y 9LE'8S LNVYD IMQ - 8€Y
6L'29v'0STS 00'0$ 6L'279'0STS 00'0$ (9z'v8‘sT8S) 00'0$ 102186589 00'0$ Y0'S6Y'90T$ HO1vdSId a31vaiosNod - Sev
€5°9LTS 000$ €5°9LT$ 00'0$ (8€°688v1$) 00°0$ 00'295'vT$ 00'0$ 16°€05$ BDNVINGAY YOI¥IdNS - 821
ST'9T8'9€TS 000$ ST'9T8'9ETS 00'0$ (20°sL0°TH$) 00'000°2$ 00'850'65% 00'0$ LTEEB'TTTS 034N O¥YOW 13 - LTV
1S'6162$ 00'0$ 1S'616°2$ 00°0$ (00°881$) 00°0$ 00'000°€$ 00'0$ 15°£0T$ SW3 0¥38ND - SZv
20'vv886TS 00'0$ 20'vv8'86TS 00°0$ (evove‘Lvs) (00°029°9%) 62°0€6°26% 00'0$ ST'088'65T$ Q4A 0¥38ND - vy
S9°'S96EEVS 00'0$ S9°'S96'EEVS 00'0$ (Le'1sv'6€T$) 00'0$ 00'928'962$ 00'0$ '165'9LT$ Q4AYNNOV1 - 6TH
98'9£9'6v$ 000$ 98'9€9'67$ 00'0$ (8z'EvL'TETS) (00°evL zes) 00'92Z'v8% 00'0$ YT'L68'62T$ Q4A NIHOLIN AONYD - 811
TS'800°9pES 00'0$ 1S'8V0'9vES 00'0$ (evoze‘zLs) 00°000°2$ 00'850°65% 00'0$ £6°0T6'ZS€$ Q3A DIV IINI4 - 9TH
20'TL0'6S 00'0% 20'TL0°6$ 00'0$ (00°1922$) 00°0$ 00'T60°0T$ 00'0% 20'THT'TS SIN3 T1IH3NId - STV
00'0$ 00'0$ 00°0$ 00°0$ (16'9£9°€2$) [25742% 00'S26°2T$ 00'0$ 61°£09°0T$ SW3 VNNOV1 - €T
EV°0TZ'98TS 000$ EV'0TT'98TS 00°0$ (99's€8°4£$) 00'262°26% 00'606°¢$ 000$ 60°SY8'€9TS a4A NOANYD 0801 - 601
8Z°LOV'1STS 00°0$ 8Z'L0Y'1STS 00°0$ (TZ'v9svrs) (00°8v¥'8TS) 00'0¥0'v0T$ 00'0$ 61'6LE'0TT$ Q4A ¥31VM3Ng - 8ov
00'6Z0'€8T$ 00'0$ 00'620°€8T$ 00°0$ (€6°298°669) (00°T0Z°98$) 62°L26°L8T$ 00'0$ $9'S9T'T8TS Q4N 13VVYH NS - L0V
ELTLL'YETS 00'0$ ELTLLVETS 00°0$ (1£'889°TvES) Y0'09Y'TSY$ 00'0$ 00'0$ LN3DIANI - 901
00'0$ 00'0% 00°0$ 00°0% (96°£9¢°228) €9'8T0°STS EE6VLLS 000$ 000$ JONVY B WYV - €00
S0'S88°€9Z$ 00'0$ S0'S88'€97$ L0'9€T$ (Lz9vs‘Lzy'Ts) 00'0$ S8'629'STH'TS 00'0$ 0v'595°592$ avod - Zov
8S'8Y6'EVY'TS 000% 8S'8V6EVYTS (92°6£2'59$) (9€'595°T£8°S$) (£8's00'vST 28) YY'8ET'S8Z'SS 000$ €1°TZ9607v$ aNNd TV¥3IN3D - oY
18'981°2922$ 6T'€ZE'L00°ES 00°0TS'692'S$ 00'0$ 00'0$ 00'0$ LY'T6L'9$ €5°LTL29T'S$ 00'0$ ANN4 LNIWLSIANI - TOT
Saduejeg Juawlsanu| S3AIaS3Y peoy sajuejeg SJUBWISNIPY QLA | Saimipusdx3 aiA Sigjsuei] QlA Sanuanay Q1A 020z/0€/9 0€/9j0seadueeg [Spung oAy
78 yse) Juipu3y 3 punj [e1auan JUSWISaAu] J0 SE sjuaunsany] yse) Suruuidag
PaisnIpy s[qejieny g puog 'v puog | g yse) suipug “Buiuugag

T20T ‘T€ AeWl Jo sy - Loday aoueury Ajyzuop Azuno) ejoqiy

S 2 e et e e

T86L ASE . ODIXEW MEN




8y LIS'TYILTS =Use) sn|d SjuLuIsanu|
TTWEV6ZTIS |  (L9°0LV9vTves) 00°0$ 0V'662'667 615 8V LT0VLLTTS 00°00529€5$ =51V101
n 00'000°0595 | 100°00000Z13) 00°000'52$ 00°000°5Z8'TS 00'0$ 00°0$ S133r0dd AV1INO VLIV - 1S9
0008 | {00°000°053) 000$ 00000'0S$ 000$ 0005 AINVYD V318 'dINOD VAN - 059
00°9v0'64$ | (00'vs6°5523) 00°0% 00°000'58$ 00°00005Z$ 000$ AaNN4 TYSIVHddYIY %1 - 029
000$ {00°'T€8'T90'V3) 00'589'75v'2$ 00°9¥1°209°TS 0003 00'0S 431N3D NOIIN313Q - v19
000$ (8v°€€9 Tvzs) 000 0003 8Y'€£9°7PTS 0005 AINVYO S,NOILDT13 LIV S,38VD - 609
0005 (00°005°€185) 0003 00°005'€18$ 000 000S 133108d TIIH ZLYVND - 209
00°0% (00°005'256$) 00°000°055 00°005'206$ 00°0S 000S AaNNd 'SNVYL "AOD T¥D01 LOAN - 909
0005 {00°000'65) (00°000°028) 00°000'67S 000$ 00°0$ NOILJ310¥d INIWIDHOINI MV - S09
00°7€0°SS {00°058 ze€S) 00°0% 00°788°187% 00°0000S$ 000$ TYHSYYIAI 3414 - 709
0005 (00°00001S) 00°000°01$ 0003 000% 00°0S AINIWIDOVNVIN ADNIOUIINT - €09
00008091 {00°052T013) 00°055°0015 00°0007S 0008 00°000°091$ SNVO1 V4NN - S£S
0005 {00°06£8529) (00°8vs'2£S$) 00'8€6'S67'TS 000$ 00°0$ AaNN4 IWODNI ONOSE 8¥T0Z - 045
0005 | {00°008°255$) {00°269'769) 00°L6¥'L79S 000S 000$ AaNN4 IWODNI ANOE VFTO0Z - 695
00°008'Tt$ | {00°00Z's¥S) 00°0$ 00000°2€$ 00°000°05$ 00°0S NYHL SSVd-SVDI - 705
00°ZZ1'0vs$ (00°091 ‘v8Z$) {00°000°Z¥3) 00°Z8Z'1€1$ 00°000°5€4S 0005 ONII4/ONIGY0D3Y N4 T1D - 00S
00°06¢'T8TS {00'6ve‘2L2s) 00°0$ 00°6£8°€0€$ 00'000°0STS 00°0$ NOILD310¥d 3814 AINNOD - SZv
0005 (00°000°001$) 000$ 00°000°00TS 00°0% 000S NOLLNEIY1SIA IMA - 6EP
00°'TTT LS (00°0£"8L0'TS) 00°LETS9TS 00°vb'058S 00°000°00T$ 000$ INVY9 IMQ - 8sv
00°0$ {00°009'823) 00°0$ 00°0097TS 00°000V1$ 00°0$ JINVINGINY HOIY3dNS - 8ZY
00°T€9°9€$ {00°00v'6525) 00°000°2$ 00'T€0'65$ 00000'0£Z$ 00°0S Q4A OHYOW 13 - LZb
000$ {00°000785) 000$ 00000'S$S 00°000°€$ 0005 SIN3 0Y¥39ND - sZh
00T61°L08$ {00°009v£13) {00°052'95) 00°Zv5'882¢$ 00°000°00Z5 00°0$ Q4A 0¥38ND - vy
18°£LL°562S {61°v16'02v5) 000$ 00°269°967$ 00000°0Z¢$ 00°0$ U4A VNNOY1 - 611
00°€21°€8$ | {00°0zz"€0£3) {00°'000T€S) 00°EPE 7878 00°000°SETS 000$ Q4A NIHOLDI AONYD - STV
00°T8E'SLTS {00°059°0v2S) 00°000°L$ 00°'T£0°607% 00'000°00Z$ 000$ Q4A DIV IDONIS - 9T
000% {00'968°219) 0003 00°00T°0TS 00°96L TS 00'0$ SI3 T1IH3NId - STV
0005 {00°880°€1S) 0005 00°000'€TS 00'885 0005 SIW3 YNNOVT - £T1
00°65TTTZS {00°265069) 00°TSL‘195 000$ 00'000°0v2$ 000$ G4A NOANYD 0901 - 60V
00°65TS {00°005"20€$) {00°008'819) 00'6502LS 00°000'7SZS 000S Q4A ¥3LVMINTE - 80P
00° 1SS LS (00°002°268) (00°152°258) 00°205'621$ 00'000°001$ 00°0S Q4A 13V4VY NYS - Zov
00°00L Y21 {00°926'5£25) 000$ 00°929°05£$ 00°000°0S$ 000$ LN3IDIANI - 90F
0005 {00°005'T29) 00°00L€TS 00008°2$ 0005 0009 IONVY B WYV - €0V
00°000°052S {00°Lv6°282°TS) 00'685LIYS 00'8S8'v8Z1$ 00°005'55$ 00'000'052$ avoy - Zov
OV’ TLL8L0S {00°050226'88) {00'998°c€523) Ov'L89°L62°LS 00°000'262°8S 0005 GNN4 TYY¥3INID - 1oV
00°005'196'7S (00°000°98) 00'0% 00°000°0T$ 00°0$ 00°005°256'VS GNN4 INIWISIANI - TOT
aduejeq yse) suipug ssimjipuadx3 sigjsuel] Sanuansy 0¢0¢ T AT BUETG ] spung eaay
“Jo seyse) sujuuidag
AT (6D
TN @& 1ebpng wlLlu| ZZAd - AJuncd ejoqio




26°185'668°6 80'8G.'76£°Z 00'9¥€'v6Z'CL 00°Z2¥'9¥L'vZ 000 00°00¢'66Z°6 1 00°005°29¢'S 00°8L0'VLL'LE srejoL
007008091 000 00008091 00°052'L0} 00055001 00000 00°000°09L 000 82lAJeg 1qeQ ueoT V4NN 00V0Y

EEIINES
000 000 000 00061 HIE"} 00'S¥2'2E9- 00°SEV'EVE'L 000 000 jgeq puog enueAey LYo 00Z0Y

j28foug
00°000°059 000 00°000°059 00°000°00Z°+ 00'000'SZ 00°000°528°L 000 000 uoljenndoiddy aape|siba ajeis 00€0E
000 000 000 00°LE8'L90'Y 00'G89'¥S¥'Z 00°'9v1°209'L 000 000 uohuajaq - |fer 00922
00°008°L¥ 000 00°008'L¥ 00°00Z'SY 000 00°000°2€ 000 000000 pun4 Bujji4 @ Buipiosey sxield 00522
00°06%°181 000 00°06%°18L 00'6¥€°2LE 000 00°6€8°C0¥ 000 0000005} pund |MQa 00£2Z
002ZL0¥S 000 00CZL0rs 0009L'v8C 00°000°ZH- 0028z LEL 000 00'000'GEL xe] sjdiedsy ssoi9 eul4 Ajunod 00zzZ
00002} 000 00004'¥ZL 00'926'G.2 000 00'929°05€ 000 00'000°0S pun4 juabipuj 000zzZ
000 000 000 00'¥€9'850°C 00'000°0S 00'000°99.'} 000 00'¥€9'Zve sjuel9 [ejuswiieAobielu] 00812
000 000 000 00°000'6 00°000°0Z- 00°000°6Z 000 000 U0j92j0id Juswaoiouz meT 00 LLz
00°500'681°L 000 00'500°681"} 00/26'922°C 00055'8¢- 00°Z8¥'S29'L 000 00°000'628°} uoplejold alid 00602
000 000 000 00005k 00°002°€l 00°008°2 000 000 ebuey g wired 0080z
00 bLL'LE 000 00°bLLLE 00°04¥'820°L 00°2€1'59L 00 v¥¥'058 000 00°000°001 pund L16-3 00202
000 000 000 00'¥85°22 00°000°01} 00°004'ZF 000 00'v88'61 Sedlaleg [edlpejy Asusbiswz 00902
Zr'vo0'LoL 85'G66'8Y L 00°000°05C 002v6'28L°} 00685t 00'858'¥8C'} 00000052 00°005'SS peoy Ajunod povoz
00°9¥0'6.2 000 00°970'6. 00'¥S6°65C 000 00°000°68 000 00'000°05Z uopenfeA Auedold Ajunod pogoz
056057629 05'292'5¥2' 002.2'0v0'6 00°050'€86'8 00'998'€€S Z- 00'889°20€'Z 00°005°256'% 00°000'262'8 pung Bupesado [elauss 0oLk
eduejeg pajsnipy seAlesey eauefeg seinyjpuadx3 siajsuel) senueAey SjusuijseAu| ysed

85:11:80 91-90-L20T uo SINGDT Wolj pajulid
Amu3z - jeurd - funog ejoqin
220Z-1207 13 [e9s14 - deday jobpng

(SWg9o1) weysAs Juswabeuey Jo6png JuswuIBAOL) B0
ODIX3|l MBN jO 3e1S




{ V4@ Aq syuswiaJinbau buipodas say3o pue syusd jo Buipuno. pa2.10J 01 anp sapuedaudsip
|[BUWS 39 Os[e [|Im 343y | "Yd1ew y3oq A3y 935 ||IM NOA 's|e10] Wwo130q ay3 323D NoA J1 1nqg dedad jeussiul

N0 ueyy J3|jews 00| abed dedal 5,74 S8xewW siy ] "puny suo ojul pauIquiod 186 spuny |\NQ 4NO |[e pue
‘puny suo o1l pauiquiod 336 spuny puoqJno |je ‘puny suo ojul paulquiod 3eb sjuelb |eruswuIaA0BISIUl INO
lIe ‘PuNny SINT V4@ duo o3ul paulquiod 186 spuny SIAIF B3 |je ‘puny Juswpiedsp a4l Y4 SUO 0} pauIquod
19D spuny juswpiedsq 414 ay3 ||y “Burpiodas usym 03 wioguod 15N am S1UN022e JO LY UMO S} Sey

V4@ "buiniodas 10} 1ewiI0) S)/4Q OIUI SPUNY UIRLIBD BUIGUIOD 03 AJUNOY) oY1 saJinbas y4Qg —D STJemsue ay |

SI9UOISSILIWOD) pUk 31e1G
941 01 31| 03 40323.I ddURUIH BY1 $92.404 Jabeuely AJunod) syl asnedsg — Qe L

buiiodau
10} 1eWI0J S,/4 01Ul SpUNJ UleLI3D auIqwiod 01 AJuno?) ay3 sadinbai v4g-

9]1E1S WF_H 0] _UWHLOO_W\_ WQ 0l ®>m_&_ H~CO_U _Ucm lNno u.u_.w_ mC_WQ o.1e m_UCDu_. WEOW I.m
- l\_wmmcm

N A3uno> pue sisuoissILWo)
9y3 '21e1s 3y 01 buipodau asjey si 1o Y

D341 9dUeUI{ Y] 9snedag — Y

¢SHodaJ (y4Q) s,uonessiuiwpy g adueuld jo Juswpedaq MM
9U3 WO} JUaJa4JIp 0S 300| spodad adueuly [eusaiul s,A3unod ayi op Aum Ml

i9]14 A1isoln) 1noA 104 WU_OF_U w_n__u._D_\/_ >__x_u.—\_0_>_




TT

Sjunodde Jayjo ul spoysp xiy o} Ajuoyine 38bpnq ubieay] 00°000°12$ 00°000°¢$ 00°000°81$ S3ILILN]  §2000-80%-S00-10% aInyipuadxgy [TIEITS R
Sjunodde Jayo ul spoydp iy 03 Aoyine 38bpnq ubijeay| 00°000°€2$ 00°000°€$ 00°000°02$ suonedIUNWWod3[3L|  20000-807-500-10% aanyipuadx3 JTIEITS 1
Sjunodde Jayo ul syoydp iy o) Aoyine 38bpnq ublieay| 00005 00°005°G$ 00°0$ uonlunwwy /swieald|  9yz00-807-500-10% aJnyipuadx3 JTIEITS q
SIUNOJ9E Jdy30 Ul spoyap X1y 03 Kjioyine 3ebpnq ubIEay| 00°000°'2628 | 00°000°528 000002128 doueinsu| Ayijiqer] “Ju3 meT| z2000-80%-500-10% ainjipuadx3 JIIEITS q
SIUN0OIE J3Y30 ul spoyap xi4 03 Ajioyine 386pnq ubijeay| 00015 00°000€$ 0001528 HIVd3d B INIVIN JIND3| Z1000-80%-500-10% aInjipuadxg [TIEITS 1 g
Siunodve J3y30 Ul spolRp X1y 03 Kyioyine 3ebpnq ubiieay| 00°000'2818 | 00°000°018 0070007221 $ asuadx3 3191yaA| 11000-80%-500-10¥ ainjipuadx3y JTIEITS i
SIUNOIDE JaL0 Ul S)oYdp XYy o) Alioyine 38bpnq ubleay| 00°005°25$ 00°00S$ 00°000°25$ saijddng g juswdinb3 35110( 60000-80%-500-10% ainjipuadx3 JIIENTS b
SjunodIe Jayo ul spoysp xiy 0 Ajioyine 3e6pnq ubleay| 00°005$ 00°051$ 00°05€$ 39VL1SOd| 90000-807-S00-10% aInyipuadx3 Juaysg i
SIUNOJ9E Jay30 Ul sHoBRp X1y 03 Kyioyine 39bpnq uBleay| 00°056 7918 |(00°051°023) 00°004°G8L$ 60681 - G 99110d 8 %SS'6 - Z IUNIN Va3d| £9000-807-500-10% ainyipuadx3 Husys 1
SIUN0JIE I3y30 Ut syoYop iy 03 Krioyine 386pnq ubliesy| 00°000'6528  |(00°000°058) 00°000°6v2$ SNIdNO¥D| $9000-80%-S00-10% aJnjipuadx3 Huays bl
Sjunodde JaLo ul spoydp iy o) Kuoyine 38bpnq ublesay| 00°000°5z2$ 00°000°G1$ 00°000°01$ dWI'8 LNIVIN SONNOY¥S| +2000-€0%-010-10¥ aInyipuadx3y ERVEETT 1 g
Siunodoe Jato ul spaysp xiy 03 Aloyine 3abpnq ublieay| 00°000°1 19 00°000°G$ 00°000°9% saieday 8snoynod| 12000-€07-010-10F 3Inyipuadxg adoueudUIR 1
Sjunoase Jauo ul syoyap xiy oy Aiioyne 396pnq ublieay| 00°000°2% 00°000°1$ 00°000°1$ S3YVIVS IWILYTAO| S0000-€0P-010-10F aInjipuadx3 adueUdUIB R
Sjunodve J3yjo ul spoyap xiy 0} Kioyne 186pnq ubleay| 00°52226% (00°000712%) 00°S2.°¢.$ HIVd3¥ ® LNIVIN JIND3|  Z1000-€0%-010-10¥ ainjipuadx3y @oueudjulR 1
Rioyine 3e6pnq ubleay| 00°005°2$ 00°000°Z$ 00°005'G$ HIVd3d B INIVIN JIND3| Z1000-SL+-700- 107 ainyipuadxgy Buiuueig i
%® Buissaippy |einy
Rioyne 386pnq ubllesy| 00°000'26$ (00°00072$) 00°000'7€$ senddng @ juswdinb3 83130 60000~ L7~700-10¥ 3Injipusdxg Buiuuelg 3
® Buissaippy |einy
eqn) ur Bujurei 08°099% 08°099% 00°0% wiswdojeAsq Heis B buluies | 86000-917-510-20% ainyipuadxg peoy b
eqnQ ur bulure1[19'y9z$ 19928 00°0% W310 ¥3d 2 3DVITIN| 0L000-91+-510-20% ainyipuadx3y peoy i
Bujuren Joj Sunod5e ssea10UI 03 JUNGIOE 5oNpPaY| 65 VLIS (1v'5z69) 00°009°G.$ AININCIND3 40 IVINIY| €1000-91-v10-20% sinjipusdx3 peoy i
Buiuren Buiwosdn ioj paisysibai 15B 0] papesN| 00°005°€S 00°000"1$ 00°0052$ uswdojaAsq yeis @ Bululel] | 86000-Z57-090-65F ainyipuadxy Ima 1
Bujuren Burwosdn ioj paisysibal 15b 0] papesN| 00°000705§ (000719) 00°000°15$ S1S0D ONILVH3dO| 0v180-LE7-090-65% ainyipuadx3y IMa 1
3S0d¥Nnd 139ang 139ang 1NNODJJV 40 #INNODJV (Woy4d 10 INIWLINVL3a (s)
OL) ¥34SNVAL 31VIS ¥0
(1) w207
asisnravy | INSWLSNrayv | a3Ao¥ddy NOLLdI¥OS3a AINNOD V10810 | IUNLIAONIdXI ALNNOD yva
: : e L = B - ANNIAIY

€€-Tz uonnjosay - yEE-Tz 9|NPaYds 64 Jyvg




[ Bunsa)[ 00°005$ 00°005$ 00°0$ Bupsa | soueldwon 10200-85%-080-G19 aimipuadx3 aoueldwo)
_ aoue|jdwoo 1oy Aed 0} pauses sasy uoneqold Buisp
| Bunsa1 00°005$ 00°005$ 00°0$ G190} 6EY WOJ4[ 6EV00-851-080-G19 aimipuadx3 aoueldwod
soueydwo) 4oy Aed 0) GL9 puny 0} 8oue|eq YSED J3ysuel ]
Bunsa1] 00°005$ 00°00S$ 00°0$ G190} 6EY WOI4| G1900-66-090-6EH ainypuadx3 Ima
aoueljdwo) Joy Aed 0} G| g puny o} adue|eq Yseos Jaysues |
‘ 43|14} uonRI3|d |ney 03 3|21YaA aseydind| 00°000°09$ 00°000°09$ 00°0$ Kepno [eyded|  82000-Zv¥-810-609 ainyipuadx3 3310
!
19bpNnq Jo dn ues[o pus Jeak Joj pue 00°0$ (00°0007098) 00°000°09$ Red piezeH| ©00Z1-zv¥-810-609 aimyipuadx3y 3310
SJUNOJDOB UMBIPIBAO J2A0D 0} Ajlioyine 3obpnq ubijeay
19BpNq JUBIINS| 82 502§ 00°05+$ 82'vSS'TS IN3WdIND3 40 TVLINIY| €1000-ZL¥-+00-10% ainjipuadx3 1l
Papaadxa )i 0s pajoadxa ueyy pajesausb siem syuud aiopn
I21yaA o} seB yyim Buoje Kisyeq paiies| 00°004'1$ 00°006$ 00°00Z$ asuadx3 312IysA|  L1000-Z k7-700-1 0 sinyipuadx3 1
aoe|dal 0} pey pue [ensn uey) Jaybiy asuadxa a|o1yap
pajoaloid ueyy Jeubiy uy ﬁ 00°008°'9v$ 0070009 00°008°07$ SUOREedIUNWWOd3Ia L[ 20000-Z+¥-v00-10¥ simipuadx3 1
196pnq jo dn uea[o pua Jeak 1oy pue| 00°0G€'00+$ (00 050 28) 00700201 $ S3FVIVS IWIL TIN| 20000-Z+7-700-10b aimIipuadx3 1
| Sjunodoe umeipiano Jan0d 0} uoyine 3eBpnq ubijeay
9Seq sjuelg 10y} [|ejsul o<>I* P0°L0v'¥LS Y0 L0v'vL$ 00°0$ ¥HIVd3¥ ® LNIVIN dIND3| Z1000-bZ¥-120-82F aimipuadx3 SW3 Jouadng
aseq sjuelo Joy |jejsul o<>1* 18°969$ v0°20v'p1LS) 16°€0L°G1L$ IN3INCIND3 ALIJVS| Z8000-vZh-120-8Z¥ ainmipuadx3y SW3 Jouadng a
P2)2bpnq jou SanuaAal [BUOHIPPE 10§ Papaaul 85ea19U]| 00°000'€S 007000°€$ 000§ enusARY J1BYI0| 00V 1E-28E-G9-GED anuansy 116-3 S
1Y Joj s93)/saNUBALI 8SBIJUI O} PIIN| 00°L26°L2$ 00°000°12$ 00°126'9$ 334 IAILVELSININGY| L0SL0-GEP-020-GEY aimipuadx3 116-3 S
1¥9 Jo} s93)/SanuBAL. 8SBAIJUI O} PRIN| 00° L 2E VZ6$ 00°000°S0L$ 00°12€'618$ SNOILVOINNIWINOD AONIDHINWT 14D 0091¥-09€-G9-5€v BnuaAdy 63 S
1¥9O 10} s99)/sanudAal 8sealoul 0} paaN| 00°'0€0°C$ 00°000°L$ 00°0€0°C$ S3XVL IN3INOIT3A NO ALTVYNId 00281-09€-59-GEY anuaAdYy Li6-3 S
1¥9O 40} s93)/sanudAal 8sealoul 0} paaN| 00°92¥$ 00°001$ 00'9.€$ ‘ S3IXVL ININDIT3A NO LSIHINI 00181-09€-G9-5EY anuaAay Li6-3 S
196pnq o dn uea|> pus Jeak ioj pue 00°004°€$ 00°00L°c$ 00°0$ AVd TVIN3AIONI[ 6£000-GE¥-0L0-GEP aimipuadx3 63 a
SJUNOIIB UMBIPIBAO J9A0D 0} Ajlioyine 3o6pnq ubjjeay
19bpnq jo dn uea|d pus Jeak 1oy pue| 00005 1§ 00°005°L$ 00°000°€L$ S3ILITILA|[  SZ000-SEY-0L0-SE¥ aimipuadx3 63 a
SJUNOJJE UMBIPIBAO J8A0D 0} Alioyine Jobpngq ubieay
19Bpnq 30 dn uea|o pus Jeak 1oy pue 00°002$ 00°002$ 00°005$ ISNIdX3 IT1OIHIA|  L1L000-GEP-020-GEY aimipuadx3y 63 a
SJUNOJIB UMBIPJBAO JBA0D 0} Ajioyine 1aBpnq ubijeay
19bpng jo dn uea|d pua Jeak 1oy pue| 0o 0Ges 00°051$ 00°00Z$ ONIHSIT8Nd ANV ONILNINd 8000-S€¥-0£0-GEY ainyipuadx3y 63 a
SJUNOJIE UMEIPIBAO 18A02 0} ALioyine Jobpnq ubjeay
19bpnq jo dn uea|d pus Jeak 1oy pue| 00°00v 01§ 00°00v$ 00°000°01$ SNOILVOINNWWOOD3T3L 2000-GEV-020-GEY ainjipuadx3 63 a
S}UNOJDOB UMBIPIBAO J2A0D 0} Ajlioyine JaBpnq ubijeay
190pnq jo dn uea|d pus Jeak 1oy pue| 00°000Z¥$ 00°000'ZL$ 00°000°6€$ SINVIVS IWILYIAO S000-GEP-020-SEY aimipuadx3y 63 a
SJUNODJE UMBIPIBAO J8A0D 0} fuioyine Jobpnq ubijeay
126pnq jo dn ues|o pus Jeak Joj pue 00°05968$ (0s€°218) 00°000°201$ JONVYNSNI dNOYD| 69000-5E¥-020-GEH aimipuadx3 L16-3 hl
S)UNOJIB UMEBIPIBAO J3A0D 0} Auioyine Jabpnq ubijeay
3S0d¥nd 13oang 139ang LNNOJJV 40 #LNNODOV (Woud J0 ANIWLYVd3a (s)
OL) ¥33SNVHL 31VIS ¥0
(1) vo01
a3isnray | AINJWLISNray | a3A0¥ddy NOILdINOS3a ALNNOD V08I0 | 3¥NLIANIdX3 ALNNOD uve
iy - St a = = 3NNIAIY

€€-Tz uonnjosay — yEE-Tz a|npayds 6 Yyvg




86 '1LST + ODJIXEAW M3IN

csuolsany

PuUl 93yl



As of May 31, 2021, Finance Report

Slide Outline and Notes of Cibola County Finance Report

Commission Meeting June 24, 2021
Finance Report Cover Page
1. Cibola County Updates

a. Finance Reports & Budgets located on Finance Department webpage

b. Wendy Self in the Manager’s Office is reconciled to the bank through May 31st for Main
Operating account and Christina Dominguez in the Treasurer’s Office has the Tax
operating account reconciled through May 31% as well. Great Job!

. The County’s Interim Budget has been approved by the Department of Finance and
Administration (DFA).

d. All Departments have been requested to review and prepare budget adjustments for
year-end clean-up of their budgets.

2. -GRT Tracker

a. Here is our Gross Receipts history and the red line designates this fiscal year’s GRT.

b. Our budgeted projection is that straight blue line and we budgeted at 25% due to
COVID-19 unknowns to ensure we could cover this fiscal year expenditures without
furloughs to County employees. We would have budgeted a 2-year average shown in
the straight brown line but then again because of COVID-19 there are too many
uncertainties with closing of businesses, schools, and tourism. We can adjust this as we
go through the year so please remember this is not set in stone and the budget is a
living document.

. The other lines represent the last 3 years as you can see in the legend.

d.. Contracts for solid waste are added back in these numbers because they never hit our
coffers as they are taken straight off the top from the state and go to pay for our solid
waste. The contracts are our Environmental GRT and | wanted them to be represented.

e. COVID-19 has not impacted GRT, knock on wood, but we are closely monitoring it.

3. GRT Over The Years

a. | found this very interesting and wanted to share the County’s Yearly GRT starting in
FY16 with you. It has been growing steadily over the years. Please remember | did back
the environment intercept amount back into these numbers because although it never
hits our coffers we should still show it here to make our numbers complete.

4. Average Monthly GRT

a. Thisis just a further breakdown from the prior slide showing what the County receives

on average each month per its respective year.
5. GRT Comparison

a. Here is a comparison of how The Village, the City and County are faring with GRT. The
red lines show where we started tracking the county and surrounding areas. GRT has
been sustaining for all entities. Great news.

6. Property Tax

a. We started out the budget at 50% of what we normally would have projected to receive

due to COVID-19. Again, as we do better we will adjust the budget. Current and



delinquent taxes are coming in strong. | budget adjustments created in tonight’s
adjustments to increase our budgeted property tax revenue amounts and ensure the
county stays within the state approved budget authority.

b. The property taxes at the end of May remained the same as they were from the end of
April.

7. Monthly Report

a. Here is our May 31 monthly financial report. As you can see we are maintaining our
investments and required reserves. We keep all our bond and state reserves in our
investment fund.

b. Our General Fund cash balance in the orange highlighted cell is healthy for the end of
May. We have $1.4 million + in the bank for our general fund as of May 31st. This is
general purpose operating cash on hand above and beyond our investments. Please
note we still need to receive $2.1 million in PILT money, need to enter the $2.8 million
into TYLER (our accbunting software) that was discovered in the treasurer’ tax operating
account into the main operating account, and all the green highlighted cells will revert
to the general fund at year end which totals another $2.1 million. We are looking to
start the new fiscal year with $8.5 million dollars in our General Fund.

c. Ourtransfers equal zero which is mandatory.

d. FYI, this recap is developed using three reports.

i. The pooled cash report and balance sheet gives what our beginning and ending
cash balances should be.

ii. The Detail Vs. Budget report gives the revenue, transfer, and expenditure
activity.

iii. The balance sheets for this also gives us our adjustments to get from pooled
cash to pooled cash. The adjustments are basically the 6/30 assets other than
cash minus 6/30 Liabilities plus 12/31 assets other than cash minus 12/31
liabilities. Basically, it’s the changes in accounts receivables and accounts
payables from the beginning of the year to now.

e. The county is in great fiscal shape.

8. FY22 Interim Budget — Internal Format

a. Here again is the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Interim budget that was just approved by DFA.
This is how it appears when | present internally to the governing bodly. Very easy to see
each fund is properly budgeted for. (Go to Next Slide)

9. FY22 Interim Budget — DFA Format

a. Hereis what it looks like when presented to DFA. Big difference right? The one sent to

DFAis a lot smaller.....why? (Go to the next slide)
10. Monthly Multiple Choice

a. Good question and that leads us into this month’s monthly multiple choice.

i.  Why do the County’s internal finance reports look so different from the
Department of Finance & Administration’s (DFA) reports?

ii. A—Because the Finance Director is false reporting to the state, the
Commissioners and County Manager.

iii. 'B—Some funds are being left out and don’t have to be reported to the state.



iv. C-DFA requires the County to combine certain funds into DEA’s format for
reporting.

V. D —Because the County Manager forces the Finance Director to lie to the State
and Commissioners.

b. Answer — C - DFA requires the County to combine certain funds into DFA’s format for
reporting. DFA has its own chart of accounts we must conform to when reporting. All
the Fire Department funds get combined to one DFA fire department fund, all the EMS
funds get combined into one DFA EMS fund, all our intergovernmental grants get
combined into one fund, all our bond funds get combined into one fund, and all our DWI
funds get combined into one fund. This makes DFA’s recap page look smaller than our
internal recap but if you check the bottom totals, you will see they both match. There
will also be small discrepancies due to forced rounding of cents and other reporting
requirements by DFA.

C.  Onthe prior slide #8 you can see the different color highlighted cells on the left. All the
corresponding cells with the same color get combined for reporting to DFA.

d. Forinternal controls, the County Commissioners and the County Manager have “read
only access” ability to ensure the finance director is properly submitting to the state
what was approved by them. They can also see any files the finance department send to
the state, quarterly reports, and all budget adjustments. Our Procurement/Risk
Manager has “read and submit access” like the Finance Director too.

11. Budget Adjustments #10
a. Here we have Budget Adjustment #10. Justifications are provided on the right of the
schedule. | recommend approval of these adjustments.
12, Budget Adjustments #10

a. Here we have Budget Adjustment #0 part 2. Justifications are provided on the right of
the schedule. | recommend approval of these adjustments.

The End - Questions from governing body



Reports Not

Presented

Road Dept.




Cibola County Road Dept.

700 E. Roosevelt Suite 50

Grants NM 87020
505-285-2570 Phone 505-285 3656 Fax

Friday June 11, 2021

To: Kate Fletcher - County Manager
Fr: Edward Salazar - Road Superintendent
Re:  Monthly Report: 05/01/21 - 05/30/21 (May)

Regular Maintenance

Blade & Shape
Road Description Miles

C354 Moreno Hill Road 8.000
Cl19B La Mosca Tank Road 4.163
CI8A4 Lobo Creek Road 0.724
C33 Candy Kitchen Road 15.125
C48 Mallery Road 13.895
49 Zuni Canyon Road 15.427
Cc32 Zuni Trail 15.111
C34 Pine Hill Road 9.744
C484 Timberlake Road 16.400
FR50 Forest Road 50 2.611

Total Miles 101.200

Special Projects

48 Mallery Rd.- Close grave, clean up cattle guard.
C49 Zuni Canyon Rd. - Clean Cuvlerts & clean & fix cattle guards, put up delineater posts.
(354 Moreno Hill Rd. - Clean Culverts.
C58 San Rafuel - Pick up trees and take to dump.
Cl Marquez Rd. - Haul chips back to yard.
C48A4 Timberlake Rd. - Clean out filled cattle guard.
C44 Porter Ranch Rd. - Check and clean cattle guards.

484 Timberlake Rd. - Clean out filled cattle guard.



Dig trench for jail.
Remove dirt from ditch at jail.

Distributor trianing by Holly Asphalt in road yard.
Chip seal training in Cuba, NM



Cibola County Road Dept.

700 E. Roosevelt Suite 50
Grants NM 87020

505-285-2570 Phone

Fax 505-287-3656

MAINTENANCE REPORT
May 2021
Total Parts & Hours Mechanic Total on Repair
Department | Unit Number oil Worked Rate Order
Clerks G-86905 24.49 1 5 18.40 $ 42.89
roraL | $ 42.89
Total Parts & Hours Mechanic Total on Repair
Department | Unit Number Oil Worked Rate Order
Road 154 20.38 1 $ 1840| $ 38.78
rotaL | $ 38.78
Total Parts & Hours Mechanic Total on Repair
Department | Unit Number [//} Worked Rate Order
Sheriffs G-68384 32.16 0.5 $ 1840 $ 41.36
TO0TAL | § 41.36




soyyaeg| 80% 980 6LE £ 16PZES o0c8g $8PZES 00c8g ooos gooo o008 o000 goc pEOY 80
Japeal Z0¢ F73] ror »s 00598 00p°6% 00°s98 ooret ooos oooo ooos oooe Zog preoy pr 7
sol0y 80F ENWAE | ENTYAR N oo'os ooo'e o008 o000 ooos ooo'o oo'os ooo0 sos peOY 90
soyyoeg 3 BENTYAE | EnTYAg N ooos o000 coos ogoe 0008 o000 oo'os gooo sos peoy S0
yoniy dung map E-=4 prs z90 2% Zpgi8¢ | oor9pz | Ligres | oorepz ooos ooo'e o008 ooo'c zzz proy zzz
yoniy duing maN ez 86§ g0 o8t 00’5288 | oogirz | 00°Sz8S | oocirz 000 o000 oo'os 0000 s2z proy zz
Hodsuesj yoey smaN 0zZ ar 640 ELEE £272668 0oL 09z £2°ZE6S 00L08Z ooos oooo ooos oog'o ozz peEoy o0zz
Yonif 431eph 612 aNTVA% | IINTYAS N oo'os o000 o008 o000 oo'os ooo'e o008 o000 61z peoy 774
s01qLsia giz ENTYAZ | ENTYAR N oo'os o000 oo'os ooo'e ooos o000 00°08 o000 81z peoy 774
yaniy dung yi74 ENYAE | 1EInTvA I oo'os o000 0008 vooo oo'os ooo'o o008 ooo0 28£0£-9 puoy 5z
yonyt duing g1z BENTVA¥ | ENTYAR N 0008 ooo'¢ oo'os oooo oo'as o000 oo'os o000 772 peoy 77
yonil ding 774 ENTYA¥ | EnTvAZ N oo'os oooo ooos oooo 0008 oooe ooos oooo L8299 proy 74
yoniy duing (774 IANTYAZ | 1ENTVA% N o008 ooo'o oo'os o000°0 ooos ogoco oo'os o000 sov8c-9 pecy (74
Yonit duing 74 ANTVYAF | IINTVA% N ooos ooo'c oo'os oooo ooos 0000 0008 oooo 6509 prOY 74
yonit duwng Ziz ENTVAR | 1INV N oo'os 0000 oo'os oooo oo'os o000 ooos oooo 0ss0e9 proy zZz
Xoem 60z ENTYAR | IENTYAK N 0008 ooo'c ooos o000 oo'os 0000 oo'os o000 9£r859 peoy 602
woeg a0 pz73 SrBs g0 208 61°6c28 00t°18 6L°6e28 0018 coos 0000 oo'os 0000 0si16-9 pooy Z5¢
T FREEHITS | anTyAR | ENTVAR N ooos o000 oo0s o000 oaos ooco o008 o000 peoy 25F
E e Lk

SSE 5582 oro 8487 9€°9pZ8 oocee scopes ooscs o0 o000 oo'os ooo'o »5698-9 proy SSE
=73 (Y77 ryd 887 ta'cocs 005904 £8EOES o0L'v0s oo'os ooo'o ooos ooo0 £5698-9 POy =3
£5F gcze 600 S9b': 009018 000°9¢ o0voLs 000°9c oo'os oooo oo'os ooo0 256989 PeoYy £5F
251 BNAE | IanTvAR N oo'os ooo'o 00°08 0000 oo'os 000°0 oo'os ogoo 6£2p9-9 peoy Z5F
155 8Ly Lo £8z 26 p9Ls 002°s5 26'v9LS 00z’ss oo‘os ooo'o oo'os ooo0 8LL8L9 proy 773
oSt Lz9 a0 000°s [ 27713 00249 orLLLS 00249 oo'os ooo'c ooos o000 284049 proy 73
13[33YM oLy 73 S0°6% 910 £92°% $L°96LS 00£°99 2279658 0099 ooos o000 oo'os ogo0 $9:99-9 peoy 73
73 ENTVAY | 1ENTYAF N ooos oooo 0008 ooo'o oo'os oo oo0'os 0000 95999 pEoy 73
OpRM|  JOPIOM DPE | [ANTYAZ | [aNTVAY N ooos 0000 oo'os o000 ooos ooo'o oo'0s oooc sopropm pEoy S5
7 ENTYAF | 130TYA% N o008 0000 o008 000’0 ooos ooo'o oo'os ooo'o 819,59 peoy E
or I2NTVAY | ENTvAS I oo'os ooo'c o008 oooo oo'os o000 oo'0s o000 619259 proy 773
65F mznwag | @Enmas N oo'os 000’0 oo'os o000 oo'os ooo'o oo'os 0000 pOELSO proy 657
4ezejes premp3 8cs PESE oz 99c'z 88°69¢S | 009°9vr | 98°69¥S | 009°9p% oaoos ocoo ooos ogo'o 298569 puoy 8L
ous) paryory ZgF 3NVA¥ | iEANTVAY N oo'os aooo ooos oooo ooos oooo oo'os o000 ££205-9 peoy Z5F
yonif feng £EF ENTVAR | ANV N 0008 ooo'o oo'os oao'c ogos ooo'o ooos aoo0 969c2-9 proy £5F
73 HENIVA¥ | ENTVAF N oo'os ooao o0-as oooo o008 aoo'o oo'os ooo'o 00862-9 pEoy 73
OEF manwng | EanTas N 00’08 ooo'o oo'os ogo00 oo'0os ooo'o oo'as oooo 8€95L-9 peoy OEF
yonu1 BuipraMm 773 Le8s st sz 287468 00s°cL L8288 oosct oo'0os o000 0008 ooo'c $908L9 peoy 8zt
Xonig eojares zr rE9L 0 6.6 00°598 002'cZ 00°598 00z'cz oo'os ooo'c ooos 0000 ££84-9 proy pz73

_ # LN odi S[HA503 o714 Jeyor Sreor 1€ (%504 F 7] %9 1830 SoWpuz oo PUF | 5 ONPIN 125 “on PiN ON LINA Zd3q FLINA

Lzoz Aew

| _

Fovsn 13nd ATHINOW




woog sjqemal £z8 IANTYAY IINTVAS na o008 oooe 0008 oooco ooos oooo ooos gooo sz8 pEOY 5z8
4320QF 05 anvag aNTVAY /N o008 goge oaos ogoo og'0s o000 oo'os oooo o5 pEOY o5
apejg 1y poseat ozr ozo o08°9F 8e 9r'8c9s 00L€65 99°8£98 00L°E6F oo'os oooo ooos 0000 ozy peoYy ozy
speig 1y pases] &iv 8z'0 65753 I3 si'vess | oozozr | srvees | oozozs oo'os o000 oo'os o000 6ir peOY F77d
apefg OAIoA gir ieo L8504 t < d 86°vorS 006°kt% 86v998 O06°tvE oo0os 0000 oo'os 0000 t-7% 4 pEY F774
OPEIF OAIOA ZiF g0 816 os Lgsrs OOL'BEE r8°'85rs 00L°8EE ooos oooo 0008 ooo'c Liv pECY Zir
apelg 1YD 774 620 09kt pid 667 PS8 oogv9s 660P5S 008'P8E ooos ooo'o oo'os o000 {754 peoy 4
4opeo] meN PEE £9p Si'E ee 86798 o0L°6¥ BEPILS o068 oo'os oooo ooos o000 piE proy 1773
A3j10x BN £if ANTVA% anTvag N ooos oooo ooos 0000 oo'os oooo o008 0000 72 peoy EIf
Japeasds diyn Zis zmvag | IEaNTvAR N o008 ooo'0 oo'os ooo'o oo'os oooo oo'0s ooo'o zie POy Zig
4adsams 773 1ANTVAZ ANTVAE N ooos o000 20°08 ooo'o ooos o000 00'0s ooo'o y 774 pBOY 74
4amopy Ok anras ENTUVAK N oo‘cs oooo ooos oooo oo'os ogooo ooos oooo [/ 2 peOY 73
# LN odH L7 SO/ %301 sEox T#5 [#30L s# 50 7o 7e0 $oH pug oo puF | STOMPIN | 18D OW FIR ON LINTT 7774 # 1IN
ieagog 60 gs0 sy (/23 0s°zr8 006k oszrs o062k ooos oooo o008 0000 [ pPEOY 80t |




Cibola County Road Dept.

505-285-2570 Phone

515 W. High Street
Grants NM 87020

505-287-3656 Fax

FUEL REPORT - CIBOLA COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT

May 2021
UNLEADED
UNIT # | VEHICLE # | COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL. | TOTAL COST
127 | G-18473 0.17 16.34 379 23200 |§ 65.00
128 | G-18464 0.15 18.81 254 13500 | § 37.37
130 | G-15638 | HVALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0.000 | $
131 | G-20800 | #VALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0.000 |$
133 | G-2369 | #VALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0000 | $ :
138 | G-95862 0.20 16.14 2,366 146600 | § 469.86
139 | G57384 | HVALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0.000 | $ P
140 | G-57619 | HVALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0.000 | $ ;
141 | G-57618 | HVALUE! | HVALUE! NU 0000 |§ :
146 146 #VALUE | #VALUE! NU 0.000 | $ ;
147 | G-66164 | HVALUE! | #VALUE! /U 0.000 |$ :
148 | G-66165 0.16 19.05 1,263 66.300 | $ 196.71
150 | G-70482 0.18 16.21 1,000 61700 |$ 177.40
151 | G78718 0.21 14.18 783 55200 | $ 164.92
152 | G-64239 | HVALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0.000 | $ :
153 | G-86952 0.09 32.36 1165 36.000 | 104.00
154 | G-86953 0.1 27.70 2,884 104100 | $ 303.81
155 | G-86954 0.10 26,55 2,378 83300 | $ 246.36
156 | compressr | HVALUE! | #VALUE/ MU 0000 |$ :
157 | G-91750 0.16 18.45 1,502 81.400 |$ 239.19
TOTAL GAS 671.300 | $ 2,004.62




DIESEL FUEL

UNIT # | VEHICLE # | COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL. | TOTAL COST
137 G-50237 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N/U 0.000 $ -
209 G-18476 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N/U 0.000 $ -
212 G-30550 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N/U 0.000 $ -
213 G-30549 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N/U 0.000 $ -
214 G-38441 #VALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
215 G-67372 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N/U 0.000 $ .
216 G-67371 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N/U 0.000 $ -
217 G-70782 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N/U 0.000 $ -
218 | Distributor | #VALUE! | #VALUE! N/U 0.000 $ -
219 | Water Truck | #VALUE! | #VALUE! N/U 0.000 $ .
220 | New Transport 0.79 418 1,173 280.700 | $ 932.23
221 | New Dump Truck 0.56 5.98 1,480 247.300 $ 825.00
222 | New Dump Truck 0.62 5.37 1,321 246100 |8 818.17
305 305 #VALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0.000 $
306 306 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N/U 0.000 $ -
307 307 4.64 0.72 14 19400 | § 65.00
308 308 3.79 0.86 33 38300 |$ 124.91
309 309 4.25 0.78 10 12900 | $ 42.50
310 310 #VALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
311 311 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N/U 0.000 $ -
312 312 #VALUE! | #VALUE! NIU 0.000 $ -
313 313 #VALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
314 314 516 0.65 32 49.100 $ 164.98
416 416 11.60 0.29 47 164.800 | $ 544,99
417 417 9,18 0.36 50 138100 | $ 458.81
418 418 10.57 0.31 44 141900 |8 464.96
419 419 11.59 0.28 34 120200 | $ 394,16
420 420 16.80 0.20 38 193100 | § 638.46
501 501 #VALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0.000 $
525 525 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N/U 0.000 $

ExtraFuel| ExtraFuel | #VALUE! | #VALUE! N/U 0.000 $ -
TOTAL DIESEL 1651.900 | $§ 5,474.17

*N/U = NOT USED




Outstanding

Service Awards

Dustin Middleton Presenter




Resolution 21-33

FY21 Budget Adjustment No.10




Cibola County

Cibola County Commission 700 E. Roosevelt Ave., Suite 50
Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman Grants, New Mexico 87020
Martha Garcia, 1°* Vice-Chair Phone (505) 287-9431 — Fax (505) 285-5434 %
Christine Lowery, 2" Vice-Chair oW aEe . ssv. ins
Ralph Lucero, Commissioner Kate Fletcher
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner County Manager

Resolution No. 21-33 BAR #10

Fiscal Year 2021

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Cibola is the duly
constituted governing body of the County and serves ex officio as the County
Board of Finance with authority for establishing, monitoring, and adjusting the
County’s budget; and

WHEREAS, budgetadjustments are required to establish correct beginning cash balances;
allow for new transfers; to allow for budget increases and decreases to
revenues and expenditures to offset any unanticipated revenues and/or
expenditures; and to correct amounts when required; and

WHEREAS, the budget adjustments and the associated line items with amounts stated on
the attached, Schedule of Budget Adjustments 21-334 is essential.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
of the COUNTY OF CIBOLA, STATE OF NEW MEXICO, ex officio COUNTY BOARD OF
FINANCE that the adjustments included in this document are deemed necessary to the
operations of the County for the 2021 fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the governing body at a regular meeting on the

24th day of June 2021.
THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:
Daniel Torrez, Chairman
Martha Garcia, 15t Vice-Chair
ATTEST:
Dr. Christina Lowery, 21 Vice-Chair
Michelle E Dominguez, County Clerk Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner



ajeq ueuueyy pieog ajeq ¥48]0 Ajuno)
18311V
SIUN0IE J3L30 Ul syoYdp Xy 03 Aiioyine 3bpnq ubleay | 0070007128 00°000c$ 00°000°81L$ S3AILITILN|  SZ000-80%-500-1L0¥ ainyipuadx3 Husyg 1
SIUN0O2E Jay30 Ul spoyap Xy 0} AIoyine Jebpng ubljeay 00°000°€Z$ 00°000°¢$ 00°000°02$ SuopedsiunwwodsjdL|  20000-80¥-500-10¥ ainypuadxy Hleys 1
S3unod2e Jayzo ur syoysp Xy o3 Aioyine 3ebpnq ubleay | 00-005°55 00°005°S$ 00°0$ uoniunwwy / swuealid[  9y200-807-500-10% ainypuadx3y IS i
SIUN0D2E JBY30 Ul spoYap Xy 0} oyine 3ebpnq ubljeay 00'000°2¢2$ 00°000°52$ 00°000Z12$ @dueansu| Ajjiqer] Ju3 meT| 22000-80v-500-10% ainypuadx3 Husysg B
SIUN022e Jau30 Ul syoysp Xy 03 Aioyine 396pnqg UblEay | 00°015°SS 00'000°¢$ 00°015°2$ VA3 2 INIVIN JIND3|  Z1000-80%-500-10¥ ainypuadx3 Huayg 1
SIUN0D2E JBY30 Ul SHdYBP Xy 0} ALioyine Jebpng ubljeey 00°000°281% 00°000°0L$ 00°000°221$ @suadx3 adIysA| 1 1000-807-500-10% ainyipuadxy Hieys 1
SIUNOD2E JBY30 Ul SHdYBP X1y 0} Aoyine Jebpnq ubljeey 00°005°26$ 00°005$ 00°000°25$ seljddng @ uswdinb3 8o0|  60000-807-500-L0% ainyipuadx3y Husysg 1
SIUNOIIE J3L30 Ul SHdYSP Xy 0} Aioyine 3obpnq Ublead | 0070058 00°0S1$ 00°0S¢$ 3OVISOd| 90000-80%-500-10% ainyipuadx3y Hueys 1
SIUNOO2E JaY30 Ul sydYep Xl 0} ALioyine 3ebpng ubljeay 00°056'¥9L$  [(00°06102%) 00'001L°681$ %06'8L - G 92110d @ %GG'6 - Z IUNN VH3d| €£9000-807-G00-L0% ainypuadxy HuByg i
SIUN02oE JBY)0 Ul syoYap XY 0} Kioyine Jebpng Ubljesy 00°000'612$ (00°000°0¢9) 00°000°6v2$ SNI dNO¥D| $9000-80%-500-10¥ ainypuadxgy Husyg i
SIUNOJJE J5L30 Ul SHdYap X1y 0 ALioyine 3ebpng ubijeay 00°000°5Z$ 00°000°G1$ 00°000°01$ diNI '8 LNIVIN SONNO¥SD|  $2000-€0%-010-10v ainypuadx3 adueuajuIR 1
SIUNOD2E U530 Ul SHdYSP X1y 03 ALIoyIne 3ebpnq ubljeay 00°000°LL$ 00°0005$ 00°000°9$ siteday 9snoynnod|  1z000-50%-010-L0b ainypuadx3y doueusueiy| g
S}UN022e I3L30 Ul sHdYsp Xy 03 ALioyine 3obpnq UbIEaY | 00700028 00°000°L$ 00°000°L$ SIVIVS INILYIAO[ S0000-€04-010-1L0V ainypuadxg EEEVEEI il
SIUN0IIE J5Y30 Ul sydRep X1y 03 Aioyine 18bpng ubleay 00'522°25$ (00°000°1.29) 00°62.°¢.$ HIVd3¥ ® INIVA JINO3| Z1000-€0¥-010-L0b ainypuadxy SoueUBUIB i
Aroyine 3196pnq ubleay| 00°005°2$ 00°000°2$ 00°005°6$ dIVd3d ® LNIVIN dIND3|[  Z1000-SL-700-L0V ainypuadx3y Bujuuelgq 1
@ Buissaippy jeiny
Ayioyine 396pnq ubileay | 00°000°'28% (00°0002$) 00°000°v€$ seljddng g Juswdinb3 95110|  60000-S Ly-700-10% ainjipuadxg Buiuuelq 1
@ Buissaippy jeiny
eqny ui Bujurel] [ 08°099% 08°099% 00°0$ juswdojeAsq Jels g BUIUIRIL|  86000-915-6L0-207 ainypuadxy peoy 1
eqn) ul butures] | 19'¥9z$ 19'v92$ 00°0$ W10 ¥3d 2 39VITIN| 0L000-91+-GL0-20V ainypusdxgy peoy 1
Bulutes; 1oy sjunoooe asesioul o) Junoooe 2oNpay| 65°v.9'V/$ (Lv'sz6$) 00°009°6.$ ANIWINDI 40 TVINIY| €L000-9L¥-F10-207 ainypuadx3y peoy 7
Buiuren Buiwosdn 1oy paisisibal 106 o) P3pdsN| 00°005°C$ 00°000°'L$ 00°005°2$ Juswdojaasq 4eis g bujures] 86000-L£V-090-651 ainypuadxg IMa I
Bujuren Bulwoodn Joy paisysibai 39b o) Pap®aN| 00°000°05$ (000°L$) 00°000°LS$ S1SOD ONILYYIdO| 0¥180-2£%-090-65% ainypuadxg IMa 1
3s0dynd 13oang 13oang 1NNO22YV 40 #1NNOD2V (Wow4d 10 AINIWLNVHIa (s)
O1) ¥34SNVNL J1VIS ¥0
(7 w201
% aaisnrav INIFWISNrav | aanoyddy NOILLdI¥OS3a ALNNOJ V10810 FUNLIANIIXT ALNNOD yvea
ANNIATY
Veeieg ‘3INAIHOS dve
Z10 | abeg €e-lg #NOILNT0S3Y
12-020Z A4 ¥VIA TVOSId
funog ejoary *SINVN ALILNI
0l# Yvg

VEE-IC - sjuswysnlpy jebpng jo sinpsyog




SV -

ueuureyy pileog

ajeq

34919 Aunoy

118311V
Bunsey souedwos 1oy Aed o} pautes sesy uoneqoud buisn[ 00°005$ ‘ 00°00S$ ‘ 00'0$ bunsa] ssuendwo) 10200-85%-080-519 ainypuadxg aoueldwon I
Bunsa1| 00°005$ 00°00S$ 00°0$ G19 03 6EY woly 6€100-85¥-080-G19 ainypuadxy 2oueldwo) 1
doueljdwoy Joy Aed 03 G 1.9 puny 03 aduejeq yses Joysues |
Bunsa1[ 00°005$ 00°00S$ 00°0$ G19 0} 6£p Wouy $1900-66%-090-6E¥ ainypuadxy Ima 1
ddueljdwo) Joy Aed 03 619 puny o} 8due|jeq yseo Jaysues |
9|85 UOBd3|S NeY 03 B|OIYBA BSBYDINg 00°000°09$ _ 00°000°09% ‘ 00°0$ KepnQ jejiden 82000-2¥¥-810-609 ainjipuadxy 34910 1
126pnq o dn ues|d pus Jesk 1o} 00°0$ (00°000°09%) 00°000°09$ Aeqd piezey Y0021-2v¥-810-609 ainjipuadxgy 31910 1
PUE Sjuno29e UMBIPIBAO 18A0D 0} Aoyine jobpngq ubjjeay
32bpnq Jusino| 820228 00°0S5L$ EIATTRZS LNININD3I 40 TVINIY €1000-Z1¥-¥00-1L0% aimipuadxg 1l q
P3pa3dxa )i os pajosdxs uey} pajesaush asom spuud aiop
8191yaA 10y seb yum Buoje Kispeq 00°00L°L$ 00°006$ 00°002$ 8suadx3 3|o1ysp L1000-21L¥-v00-L 0% aimyipuadxgy LI 1
Pajie} 8oe|dal 0} pey pue jensn uey) JayBiy asuadxa ajo1ysp
pa3osfoud ueyy Jeybiy ur swen 00°008°9¥$ 00°000°9% 00°008'0v$ suopesdlunwwossldL|  20000-ZLy-700-L0Y ainypuadxy 11 1
196pnq jo dn ues|5 pus 1esk 1o} 00°0S€°001L$ (00°050°2$) 00°00¥°201$ SAR-VIVS INIL 7704 20000-ZL7-¥00-L0¥ aJinjipuadxy 1l bl
PUE S3Unoooe UMeJpIBAO0 J19A0D 0} Ajioyine 396pnq ubijeay
9SBq SjuRI9 10} [[BISUI DVAH]| ¥0° L0V V1S Y0'LOV'VLS 00°0$ dIVd3y 8 LNIVIN dIND3 €1000-vZy-L20-82% ainyipuadxgy SN Jouadng a
9SBq sjuel9 Joj [[eISUl QYAH| 2879693 (Y0°L0v'pL$) 16°€0L'SL$ ANININDI ALIAVS 28000-v2¥-120-82% ainyipuadxy ST Jouadng 1
P83abpnq jou senusAal [euonippe 104 papasu sseatoul| 00°000°cS 00°000°c$ 00°0$ |nuaAay Jay30 00¥1€-28€-G9-G¢¥ anuaAay Li6-3 S
LYD J0} se3y/senusnsl aseaidu; 03 pasN 00°126°L2$ 00°000°L2$ 00'L26°9% 334 JAILVHLSININGY L0SLO-GEV-0L0-GEY aimjipuadx3 Li6-3 S
1Y9 1o} svvy/senusnal sseaIour o) pasN 00°12€vZ6$ \ 00°000°50L$ 00°Lze'618$ r’) SNOILYOINNAWOD AONIDHINT 14D 0091¥-09€-G9-S¢¥ anudAsy Li6-3 S
149 10} so3y/senuanal esealdul 0} pasN 00°0£0°c$ ‘ 00°000°L$ 00°0£0°2$ * S3XV.L LIN3INDIT3d NO ALTYNId 00281-09€-G9-G¢¥ anuaAay Li6-3 S
LYD 10} sv3y/s9NUBABI BSEAIOUI O) pasl 00°9.¥$ ‘ 00°00L$ ‘ 00'92¢$ ‘ S3XV.L ININDIT3A NO LSIHINI 00181-09€-G9-GEP anuaAay L16-3 S
32bpnq jo dn uespo pus Jeak 1041 00°00L°€$ 00°00L°c$ 00°0% AVd TVLN3QIONI 6€000-G€¥-020-GSh aJnmipuadx3y L16-3 |
PUEB Sjuno3oe UMBIPIBAO 18400 03 Ajioyine 196pnq ubijeay
3126pnq jo dn ueso pus Jeak 1041 00°00S'VL$ 00°00S°L$ 00°000°cL$ S3LLTILN S2000-G€V-0L0-GEY ainyipuadx3 L16-3 1
PUE SjUN020e UMEIPIBAO 19A0D 03 jLioyjne 3obpnq ubijeay
18bpnq jo dn ues|s pus Jeak 4041 00°00,$ 00°00Z$ 00°005$ ISN3IdX3 IT1OIHIA LL000-S€-0L0-SEY aimyipuadx3y L16-3 1
PUE SjUN029E UMEBIPIBAO J9A0D 03 Ajuioy)ne 196pnq ubijeay
326pnq jo dn ues|o pus 1eak 1041 00°0S€$ 00°051$ 00°002% ONIHSIT9Nd ANV ONILNIYd 8000-S€¥-020-GE¥ aimipuadx3y L16-3 1
PUE SjUN022e UMBIPIBAO 18A0D 0} Aoyine 3o6pngq ubijeay
326pnq o dn ues|o pus 1eak 104 00°00¥°0LS 00°00¥$ 00°000°0L$ SNOILVOINNIWNOD3TIL L000-S€¥-020-G€y ainjipuadxy L16-3 E
PUE Sjunodoe uMeIpIano J1aA0d o3 Ajioyjne 396Bpnqg ubijeay
326pnq jo dn ueso pus Jeakh 1041 00°000°LY$ 00°000°ZL$ 00°000°5€$ S3™VIVS IWILYIAO S000-S€4-0L0-GSh ainjipuadxy L16-3 1
PUE SJUN020E UMBIPISAO JBAOD 0} Auoyine 1obpnq ubijeay
39Bpnq Jo dn ueajo pus 1eak ioj 00°059°68% (0s€°218) 00°000°20L$ JONVYNSNI dNOY¥D|  $9000-5£%-020-Gep ainypuadx3y 116-3 1
PUE SjuNodoB UMBIPIBAO 19A02 0 Auoyjne 3obpnq ubjjeay
3sodynd 139dansg 13sang ANNOJJV 40 #LNNOJ2V (Woud 10 AININLHVdIa (s)
O1) ¥34SNV¥L 31V1S ¥O
(1) w001
aaisnrav ININLISNray Q3A0¥ddY NOILdI¥OS3a ALNNOD V10812 JFUNLIANIdX3 ALNNOD yva
ANNIAIY
vee-le ‘3TINAIHOS ¥vd
Z 40 ¢ abed €e-lz # NOILN10S3Y
12-0202 A4 UVIA VoS
xE:oo BlOqID ‘3NVN ALILLN3

Ol# ¥vg

VEE-1¢C - sjuswsnipy 1e6png jo ejnpsyog




Resolution 21-34

Records Retention Policy




C1BOLA COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION Ne 2021-34

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A COUNTY RECORDS AND DISPOSITION
PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners met in a regularly scheduled meeting
on Thursday, June 24, 2021, at 5:00 p.m. in the Cibola County Administration Building 700
Roosevelt, Grants, New Mexico 87020; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-18 (1876) vests a county’s management in its
Board of County Commissioners; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 3-18-1 (1972) provides that municipalities, and also
counties pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-1 (1995), have the power to “protect generally
the property of its municipality and its inhabitants” and to “preserve peace and order’”; and,

WHEREAS, Section 4-37-1 et seq. NMSA 1978 provides that counties may adopt
Replaces, not inconsistent with statutory or constitutional limitations placed on counties, to
discharge those powers necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the health,
promote the prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and convenience of the county
and its inhabitants; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-13 (1876) provides that the board of county
commissioners shall have power at any session to make such orders concerning the property
belonging to the county as they may deem expedient; and,

WHEREAS, the County of Cibola is implementing a Records Management Program;
and,

WHEREAS, the purpose of the County's Records Management Program is to ensure that
certain documents are maintained for legal, fiscal, and other purposes and subject to destruction

at set durations; and,

WHEREAS, records disposition is the final action after a record's retention period has
ended that permits the destruction or further retention of public records; and,

Page 1 of 9



WHEREAS, the New Mexico Commission of Public Records, State Records Center and
Archives previously issued Records Retention and Disposition Schedules applicable to New
Mexico counties, although those rules have been repealed the schedule remains applicable and
useful; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 14-7-1 (1967) provides that “[tThe following county
records shall be deemed obsolete and may be destroyed: A. purchase vouchers which are six
years old;B. chattel mortgages six years after the expiration of their term; C. security agreements
filed under the Uniform Commercial Code six years after the expiration of their term; D. copies
of state highway project contracts filed by the chief highway engineer three years after the date
of filing; E. duplicate information reports filed in the offices of county officials, including but
not limited to duplicate reports of the county treasurer, sheriff, county agricultural agents and
county health officers, which are two years old; F. chattel mortgage releases six years after the
date of filing; and G. termination statements filed under the Uniform Commercial Code six years
after the date of filing;” and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 14-1-8 (1961) provides that “[o]bsolete county
records; notice of proposed destruction; preservation desired by state records administrator;
delivery of documents An official charged with the custody of any records and who intends to
destroy those records, shall give notice by registered or certified mail to the state records
administrator, state records center, Santa Fe, New Mexico, of the date of the proposed
destruction and the type and date of the records he intends to destroy. The notice shall be sent at
least sixty days before the date of the proposed destruction. If the state records administrator
wishes to preserve any of the records, the official shall allow the state records administrator to
have the documents by calling for them at the place of storage.;” and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 14-3-18 (2005) provides that recognized counties
have a right and duty to formulate programs for the disposition of public records maintained in
county offices; and, \

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 14-3-18 (2005) provides that recognized counties
have a right and duty to formulate programs for the disposition of public records maintained in
county offices; and,

WHEREAS, until its repeal on November 30 2015 the New Mexico Administrative
Code (NMAC) provided Record Retention and Disposition Schedules for local governments,
however now local governments are required to create their own schedules; and,

WHEREAS, on November 30, 2015 the State Records Administrator issued NMAC
Rule 1.21.3 as a guide to local government which this policy is based on; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of the
County of Cibola that the County adopts and follows the following policy and the Retention and
Disposition Schedules as set forth in Exhibit "A" in its entirety which was previously NMAC
Rule 1.21.

Page 2 of 9



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 24% day June 2021.

Daniel Torrez, Chair Martha Garcia, 1% Vice-Commissioner

Christine Lowery, 2°¢ Vice-Chair Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Michelle E. Dominguez
Cibola County Clerk

Page 3 of 9



CIBOLA COUNTY RECORDS AND DISPOSITION POLICY
1. PURPOSE

This policy is to ensure the uniform application of efficient maintenance, retention and
disposition of County public records in accordance with state law.

2. POLICY

Cibola County shall maintain, retain and dispose of public records in accordance with
state law and other public records requirements. Non-records or non-essential records
shall be retained as the custodial department deems necessary.

3. DEFINITIONS

a. Computer- means an electronic device designed to accept data (input), perform
prescribed mathematical and logical operations at high speed (processing) and supply
the results of these operations (output). This includes, but is not limited to,
mainframe computers, minicomputers and microcomputers, personal computers,
portable computers, pocket computers, tablet computers, telephones capable of
storing information, PDAs, MDTs, and other devices,

b. Confidential- means information provided to, created by or maintained by a
government agency and that is exempt from release under state or federal laws,
because disclosure would cause substantial harm or constitute an invasion of privacy
or is otherwise prohibited by law.

c. Custodial department- means the department responsible for the maintenance, care or
keeping of public records, regardless of whether the records are in that department’s
actual physical custody and control.

d. Custody- means the guardianship of records, archives and manuscripts, which may
include both physical possession (protective responsibility) and legal title (legal
responsibility).

e. Degaussing- means the process of removing magnetism from magnetically recorded

tape thereby rendering most of the information non-reconstructable.

f. Destruction- means the disposal of records of no further value by shredding, burial,
pulping, electronic overwrite or some other process, resulting in the obliteration of
information contained on the record.

g. Disposition- means the final action that puts into effect the results of an appraisal
decision for a record series (e. g., transfer to archives or destruction).

Page 4 of 9



Electronic public record- means any information that is recorded in a form that only
an electronic device can process and that satisfies the definition of a public record in
Subsection G of Section 14-3-2 NMSA 1978.

Non-records or non-essential records- means extra copies of documents kept solely
for convenience of reference, stocks of publications, records not usually included
within the scope of the official records of an agency or government entity and library
material intended only for reference or exhibition. The following specific types of
materials are non-records: materials neither made nor received in pursuance of
statutory requirements nor in connection with the functional responsibility of the
officer or agency; extra copies of correspondence; preliminary drafts; blank forms,
transmittal letters or forms that do not add information; sample letters; and reading
files or informational files.

On-site destruction- means that once a department has received approval from the
County Records Custodian and archives to destroy records, the department has the
option to destroy records on-site at the physical location of the department using an
approved method of destruction.

Permanent records- means records considered unique or so valuable in documenting
the history or business of an organization that they are preserved in an archives.

Public records- means all books, papers, maps, photographs or other documentary
materials, regardless of physical form or characteristics, made or received by the
County in pursuance of law or in connection with the transaction of public business
and preserved or appropriate for preservation, by the County or its legitimate
successor as evidence of the organization, functions, policies, decisions, procedures,
operations or other activities of the government or because of the informational and
historical value of data contained therein (Section 14-4-2 NMSA 1978).

Records- means information preserved by any technique in any medium now
known or later developed, that can be recognized by ordinary human sensory
capabilities either directly or with the aid of technology (1.13.70 NMAC).

Records center- means a facility designed and constructed to provide effective storage
for records that have become inactive but have not reached their disposition date.

The County’s records center is the principal County facility for the storage, disposal,
allocation or use of non-current records of departments or materials obtained from
other sources.

Records custodian- means the County employee appointed by the Board of County
Commission to administer this policy. The records custodian has responsibility for

archiving, tracking and disposing of all County public records.

Records liaison officers- means a person in each department responsible for
authorizing the transfer, withdrawal or destruction of records and who liaisons with

Page 5 of 9



the records custodian.

q. Records management- means the systematic control of all records from creation or
receipt through processing, distribution, maintenance and retrieval, to their ultimate
disposition.

r. Records retention and disposition schedules- means rules adopted by the state

commission of public records pursuant to Section 14-3-6 NMSA 1978 describing
records of an agency, establishing a timetable for their life cycle and providing
authorization for their disposition.

S. Recycling- means the process that recovers the raw materials of a medium allowing
for the reuse of various media. Overwriting on magnetic media is a means of
recycling.

t. Reformatting- means the process in which hard drives and floppy drives are
reinitialized.

u. Retention- means the period of time during which records must be maintained by the
County because they are needed for operational, legal, fiscal, historical or other
purposes.

4. ASSIGNMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES

a. The County Commission appoints a “Records Custodian” to carry out the purposes
of the Public Records Act. The records custodian is responsible for establishing
records management programs within the organization for the purpose of ensuring the
efficient and economical management of public records throughout their lifecycle
from their creation, utilization, maintenance, retention, preservation and final
disposition.

b. The records custodian is hereby delegated the authority to order the routine retention
and or destruction of public records, in accordance with the adopted records retention
and disposition schedules and the process established by the State Commission of
Public Records regulations and shall prescribe the appropriate method of destruction
of public records.

¢. Each department is responsible for appointing a “records liaison officer” to cooperate
with, assist and advise the records custodian in the performance of his or her duties
and to provide such other assistance and data as shall enable the records custodian to
properly carry out the purposes of the Public Records Act (Section 14-3-4 NMSA
1978).

5. DISPOSITION OF PUBLIC RECORDS

a. The County shall select a records center for public records storage and retention.

Page 6 of 9



b.

Records liaison officers shall complete “records disposition” forms (Exhibit “B”) for
each box or bundle of records requiring storage.

i. The completed records disposition form should be securely taped or affixed to
the front of the records container or box and archived in a safe and
manageable manner.

ii. Records disposition forms for records considered unique or have historically value
or are permanent records shall be marked “PERMANENT”. Permanent public
records shall NOT be destroyed.

e

Departments shall ensure the proper authorized disposition of their records regardless
of format or medium so that permanent records are preserved and records no longer
of use to the County are promptly deleted or destroyed based on retention periods
established in records retention and disposition schedules and subject to the written
approval of the records custodian.

d. Departments shall secure written approval from the records custodian before
destroying any public record or before transferring records to County archives.

o

Departments shall follow regulations issued by the records custodian governing the
methods of destruction.

f. Departments shall at least annually, inspect department archived records and make
arrangements with the records custodian to dispose of records exceeding trigger dates.

6. DESTRUCTION OF NON-RECORDS

a.

Destruction of non-records is the sole responsibility of the custodial department and
does not require prior approval of the records custodian. This responsibility includes
identifying whether the information is a non-record or a public record.

Non-records that contain confidential or sensitive information exempt from disclosure
by statute shall be destroyed in such a manner that the information cannot be read,
interpreted or reconstructed. Non-records that contain confidential or sensitive
information shall be destroyed by shredding, macerating or recycling through a
bonded document destruction vendor.

Non-records without confidential requirements or that do not contain personal
identifiers may be destroyed by any of the following methods discarded in a waste
receptacle, dumpsite burial, recycled through a recycler, or shredded.

6.4 Electronic non-records that do not contain confidential or sensitive information

may be destroyed by physical destruction of the media or erasure of the data from
all media including back-up media.

Page 7 of 9



DESTRUCTION OF PUBLIC RECORDS

a.

Destruction of public records may occur on-site at the department or through the
records custodian. Departments choosing to store public records on-site for the life
cycle of the records shall contact the records custodian when the records have met
their legal retention period.

The records liaison officer shall complete and submit the County’s “request for
disposition” form to the records custodian. The records liaison officer shall indicate
on the form that the records are to be destroyed on-site.

The records custodian shall either approve or deny the request. If denied, the records
custodian shall identify the appropriate trigger date.

When appropriate the records custodian shall conduct a review and appraisal of the
records to make a determination.

The records custodian shall then give notice by registered or certified mail to the state
records administrator, state records center, Santa Fe, New Mexico, of then date of the
proposed destruction and the type and date of the records he intends to destroy. The
notice shall be sent at least sixty days before the date of the proposed destruction. If
the state records administrator wishes to preserve any of the records, the records
custodian shall allow the state records administrator to have the documents by calling
for them at the place of storage. The Records Disposition Form, Attachment “B”

If the records listed on the request for disposition have met their legal retention
period and are eligible for destruction, the department shall receive a letter/email
from the records custodian authorizing destruction of the records.

The records custodian shall notify a department in writing if the request for on-site
destruction is denied.

Departments that destroy records on-site shall certify the destruction in writing. A
certificate of destruction shall be submitted to the records custodian. For legal and
audit purposes, records liaison officer(s) shall retain a copy of the certification on file.
Departments shall use only approved methods for department on-site destruction of
public records as identified below.

Records that contain confidential or sensitive information shall be destroyed in such a
manner that the information cannot be read, interpreted or
reconstructed by:

1) witnessed shredding, then pulping through a bonded document destruction

vendor, or
2) witnessed macerating through a bonded document destruction vendor.

Page 8 of 9



ii. Records without confidentiality requirements shall be destroyed by:

1) recycling by a bonded document destruction vendor,
2) shredding;

3) macerating; or

4) witnessed dumpsite burial.

h. Electronic records shall be destroyed pursuant to 1.13.3 NMAC, Management of
Electronic Records.

Page 9 of 9



EXHIBIT A

RETENTION
AND
DISPOSITION
SCHEDULES



1.19.5.109 INMATE FILES:

A. Program: county jail

B. Maintenance system: local government preference

C. Description: records concerning inmates incarcerated at the county jail. Portions of file
are used as input into the nmate management system. File may include booking authority form,
inmate data sheet, classification and housing separation profile form (date, booking number, file
number, race, DOB, age, sex, inmates name, citizenship, religious preference, educational
history, confinement history, primary factors for classification and separation of inmates,
officer signature, housing assignment, cell number), initial custody assessment form, (severity of
current offense, offense history, escape history, disciplinary history, alcohol or drug abuse,
stability factors, scale summary and recommendations), social security number, offense,
arraignment information, probable cause statement, criminal complaints, served warrants,
medical clearance, property inventory, bond information sheet, extradition information, date
of commitment, arresting agency, copy of arrest report, amount of bond, release orders,
segregation information, trustee information, protective custody information, date released,
judgment and sentence orders, copy of release orders, fingerprints, mug shots, etc.

D. Retention: ten years from date of release

E. Confidentiality: Portions of this record may be confidential per 5 USC Section 552a (i.e.,
social security number); Section 14-6-1 NMSA 1978 (i.e., medical information).

[1.19.5.109 NMAC- Rp, 1.19.5.127 NMAGC, 04/24/2006]

1.19.5.110 INMATE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM:

A. Program: county jail

B. Maintenance system: local government preference

C. Description: system used to track and monitor number of incoming and outgoing
inmates at the county jail. Data may include inmate name, address, telephone number, date
of birth, emergency contact, classification, mug shots, fingerprints, social security number,
prior arrests, releases, offense, judgment and sentence, medical information, etc.

D. Retention: ten years from date of release

E. Hardcopy input documents: all documents used as input for inmate management system
are entered from the znmate file; those documents may include the c/assification and housing
profile, arrest report, inmate information sheet, jail incidents, etc.

F. Hatdcopy output documents: Because this is a data-based system, ad hoc reports may
be generated upon request.

G. Confidentiality: Portions of this record may be confidential per 5 USC Section 552a
(Le., social security number), Section 14-6-1 NMSA 1978 (i.e., medical information).
[1.19.5.110 NMAC- N, 04/24/2006]

1.19.5.111 TEMPORARY INMATE FILES:

A. Program: county jail

B. Maintenance system: local government preference

C. Description: records concerning state prisoners housed temporarily at the county jail and
inmates that are held less than forty eight hours. File may include name of inmate, DOB,
property inventory sheet, length of sentence, offense committed, corrections classification
pending transfer log, etc.

D. Retention: ten years from date of transfer or release

E. Confidentiality: Portions of this record may be confidential per 5 USC Section 552a (i.c.,
social security number).

[1.19.5.111 NMAC- N, 04/24/2006]

Page 1 of 46



1.19.5.112 INMATE TELEPHONE SYSTEM:

A. Program: county jail

B. Maintenance system: local government preference

C. Description: records concerning recordings of telephone calls made by inmates. Data
may include inmate name, telephone number called, date, time of call, verbatim recording,
ete.

D. Retention: six months after date of call

E. Input: outgoing calls are automatically recorded and maintained electronically

F. Hardcopy output documents: Because this is a data-based system, recordings may be
generated upon request for up to six months from date of call

[1.19.5.112 NMAC - N, 04/24/2006]

[If investigation evolves into a court proceeding then the case recordings are incorporated
into the investigation file]

1.19.5.113 JAIL INCIDENT REPORTS:

A. Program: county jail

B. Maintenance system: local government preference

C. Desctiption: records concerning incidents involving correctional officers or inmates. File
may include name of inmate or correctional officer involved, date of incident, description of
incident, disciplinary action taken, etc.

D. Retention: four years after date of final action

[1.19.5.113 NMAC- N, 04/24/2006]

[Copy placed in correctional officer personnel file or inmate file]

1.19.5.114 JAIL VISITORS LOG:

A. Program: county jail

B. Maintenance system: local government preference

C. Description: log of daily visitors to facility. Log may include visitor name, address,
driver's license number, inmate name, badge number, date, relationship to inmate, time in,
time out, date, officer on duty, etc.

D. Retention: three years from close of calendar year in which created

[1.19.5.114 NMAC- N, 04/24/2006]

N.M. Admin. Code § 1.19.5

To the extent that it is a medical record:

1.15.8.101 MEDICAL RECORDS;

A. Program: all public entities

B. Maintenance system: chronological by year, then alphabetical by client surname

C. Desctiption: records which document the illness, treatment, care and diagnostic studies
of individual

D. Retention:

(1) adult medical records: inactive records shall be kept 10 years

(2) minor medical records: inactive records shall be kept 10 years, or one year after the
person reaches the age of 21; whichever period of time is greater

Page 2 of 46



E. Confidentiality: Portions of this record may be confidential pursuant, but not limited to
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191 (199¢6)
(i.e., health information).

[2/12/79; 1.15.8.101 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.40.M 101, 10/01/2000; A, 04/30/2012]
1.15.8.102 NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES ACKOWLEDGMENT FORM:

A. Program: all public entities

B. Maintenance system: chronological by year, then alphabetical by client surname

C. Description: form signed by clients acknowledging receipt of the health care provider's
privacy policies regarding the individual's medical information. Form may show the
organization's current privacy policy, date, client signature, etc.

D. Retention: six years from date in which client signed form

N.M. Admin. Code § 1.15.8

To the extent that it is administrative in nature:

1.15.3.101 NON-RECORD MATERIALS:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: the following specific types of materials are defined as “non-record” and
may be disposed of at the convenience of the agency when they have no more value/use to
the agency: extra copies of correspondence and other documents preserved only for
convenience of reference; blank forms, books, etc., which are outdated; materials neither
made nor received in pursuance of statutory requirement nor in connection with the
functional responsibility of the office/agency; preliminary drafts of letters, reports, and
memoranda which do represent significant basic steps in preparation of record documents;
shorthand notes, steno tapes, mechanical recordings which have been transcribed, where
noted on agency retention schedule; routing and other interdepartmental forms which do
not add any significant material to the activity concerned; stocks of publication already sent
to archives and processed documents preserved for supply purposes only; form and guide
letters, sample letters, form paragraphs. All other materials either related or received in
pursuance of statutory requirements or in connection with the transaction of public business
which belong to the office concerned are government property and not personal property of
the officer or employees concerned. Therefore, any material not included in the above
definition cannot be destroyed, given, or taken away, or sold without complying with all the
statutory requirements specifically relating to said records.

D. Retention: none

[7/13/98;1.15.3.101 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 101, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.102 SUBJECT FILES:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: correspondence, memoranda, publications, reports and other information
received by agency and filed by subject. Also referred to as reading files or information files.
D. Retention: until superseded or until information no longer needed for reference
[7/13/98;1.15.3.102 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 102, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.103 PRIMARY MISSION RECORDS:

Page 3 0f 46



A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: files concerning the establishment of the agency, its development and
policies, its progress, operation summaries, plans for the future development, etc.

D. Retention: permanent

[7/13/98;1.15.3.103 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 103, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.104 AGENCY ORGANIZATIONAL CHARTS:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records that reflect the organizational structure of the agency and its
divisions. Information includes a diagram, which shows a systematic and symbolic
arrangement of an agency’s divisions and program areas by name and function.

D. Retention:

(1) Executive copy (agency director, deputy director, and division director): until
superseded and until no longer needed for reference, then transfer to archives

(2) Non-executive copies: until superseded by new organizational chart

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.104 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 104, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.105 ADMINISTRATIVE RULES:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: rules, regulations, orders, statements of policy, and amendments as defined
and filed in compliance with the state rules act (Section 14-4-3 NMSA 1978). Administrative
rules shall be filed with state records center, rules division (Section 14-3-3 NMSA 1978).
D. Retention:

(1) Agency copy: until superseded or rescinded

(2) State records center (copy filed in rules and publications division): permanent
[7/13/98; 1.15.3.105 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 105, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.106 ADMINISTRATIVE FILES (EXECUTIVE LEVELS):

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records documenting actions of an agency director, deputy director, or
division directors. Files may include memoranda and reports concerning agency policy,
organizational and program development records, and non-routine fiscal data and personnel
information. These records reflect administration of policy, coordination of agency
functions, and management of program activity.

D. Retention: after five years transfer to archives for appraisal and final disposal
[7/13/98; 1.15.3.106 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 106, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.107 ADMINISTRATIVE REFERENCE FILES (NON-EXECUTIVE
LEVELS):

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctiption: routine office management files retained below the agency director, deputy
director, and division director levels. Included are convenience copies of memoranda,
reports, printed matter, and other reference materials. Topics include such subjects as: job
activities, program material, general office information, professional associations, charitable
affairs, parking for staff, disaster preparedness, and other related topics.

D. Retention: until no longer needed for reference

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.107 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 107, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]

Page 4 of 46



1.15.3.108 ADMINISTRATIVE CORRESPONDENCE FILES (EXECUTIVE
LEVELS):

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: correspondence is related to the administration of an agency or division.
Communications concem coordination of programs, agency policy, and responsibilities of a
non-routine nature that impact on the agency or its divisions. These letters are usually found
at the agency director, deputy director, and division director levels. This record group
includes the correspondence files of all elected and appointed officials.

D. Retention: two years after close of fiscal year in which created, then transfer to archives
for appraisal and final disposal

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.108 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 108, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.109 GENERAL CORRESPONDENCE FILES (NON-EXECUTIVE
LEVELS):

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: routine correspondence created or retained below the levels of agency
director, deputy director, and division director. Letters and memoranda reflect
communication regarding program procedures, general work activities, and responses to
information requests.

D. Retention: one year after close of fiscal year in which created

[7/13/98;1.15.3.109 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 109, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.110 INTERSTATE COMPACTS:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: interstate compact or other intergovernmental agreement as defined in the
public records act (Section 14-3-20 NMSA 1978). Interstate compacts and
intergovernmental agreements shall be filed with state records center, rules and publications
division (Section 14-3-20 NMSA 1978).

D. Retention:

(1) Agency copy: six years after termination of compact or agreement

(2) State records center (copy filed in rules and publications division): permanent
[7/13/98; 1.15.3.110 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 110, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.111 EXECUTIVE ORDERS, PROCLAMATIONS, AND LEGISLATIVE
ADVISORIES:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: instructions issued by the governor as the chief executive of state
government.

D. Retention:

(1) Agency copy: until superseded or rescinded

(2) Governot's office copy: until transferred to archives for review

(3) Copy filed with state records center, rules and publications division (14-4-2 and
14-4-4, NMSA 1978): permanent

[7/13/98;1.15.3.111 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 111, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.112 GOVERNING BOARD FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

Page 5 of 46



C. Description: records concerning agency dealings with the governing board of said
agency. File may include original or copy of minutes of meetings, reports, related
documentation, correspondence, etc.

D. Retention: five years then transfer to archives for appraisal and final disposition
[7/13/98;1.15.3.112 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 112, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.113 COMMITTEES OR COUNCILS FILES:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning various committees/ councils with which office or
department deals. File may contain copies of minutes of meetings, reports, notifications,
correspondence, memoranda, related documentation, etc.

D. Retention: five years after close of fiscal year in which created

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.113 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 113, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.114 MANUALS OF PROCEDURES:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: manuals of procedure prepared and published by state agencies for the
guidance of public officers and employees engaged in operations required for the efficient
operation of state and local government, including but not limited to acquiring space,
budgeting, accounting, purchasing, contracting, vouchering, printing, appointment and
dismissal of employees, record maintenance, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Agency copy: until superseded by new manual of procedure

(2) State records center copy (copy filed as publication with state records center):
permanent

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.114 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 114, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.115 POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FILES:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: reference copies of current policies and procedures of government and
non-government entities with which an agency deals.

D. Retention: until superseded or obsolete

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.115 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 115, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.116 LEGISTLATION, AGENCY FILES:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctiption: documents pertaining to bills' prospective legislation. Copies of bills and
proposed (drafted) legislation. Includes supporting material relating to legislation, such as
newspaper clippings, reports, correspondence, memoranda, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Enacted legislation: four years, then transfer to archives for review and final disposal
(2) Failed ot vetoed legislation: four years after close of fiscal in which created
[7/13/98; 1.15.3.116 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 116, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.117 REPORTS:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: [RESERVED]

D. Retention:

Page 6 of 46



(1) Annual, biennial, or other petiodic reports required by Article V, Section 9, N.M.
Constitution, or by specific statute: permanent

(2) Routine, interim, or progress reports: two years after close of fiscal year in which
created

(3) Ad hoc reports: none

[7/13/98;1.15.3.117 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 117, 10/1/20005 A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.118 ACCIDENT REPORT FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctiption: reports of accidents involving agency personnel.

D. Retention:

() Files resulting in no action/claim/litigation: two years after date of accident

(2) Files resulting in action/claim/litigation: until incorporated into workers'
compensation file

[7/13/98;1.15.3.118 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 118, 10/1/20005 A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.119 MINUTES OF MEETINGS:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctiption: records of official proceedings of governing bodies. Information includes
agenda, date, place, list of attendees, and a summary of discussion and decisions. Official
minutes may also include all informational attachments such as reports, surveys, proposals,
studies, and charts distributed to members for discussion and for use in making decisions on
agency policy, planning, and administrative matters. Official minutes shall include only those
documents and attachments that have been formally introduced as part of a record.

D. Retention:

(1) Minutes of meetings of boards, commissions, and/or other policy-making bodies,
as defined in open meetings Act (10-15-1, NMSA 1978): permanent

(2) Minutes of meetings of all other bodies: five years, then transfer to archives for
appraisal and final disposal

(3) Tapes or recordings of meetings: after minutes have been transcribed and accepted at
next meeting but no longer than two years after meeting date

(4) All other documentation including agenda, agenda package, etc: after next meeting
date but no longer than two years after meeting date

[7/13/98;1.15.3.119 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 119, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.120 APPLICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctiption: applications for employment within particular office or department. File
may contain application, resume, letters of reference or recommendation, correspondence,
memoranda, related documentation, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Applications and records for individuals hired: transfer to personnel office when
individual accepts position

(2) Applications and tecords for individuals not hired: transfer to personnel office when
position s filled

(3) Unsolicited applications: transfer to personnel office when received
[7/13/98;1.15.3.120 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 120, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.121 PUBLIC RELATIONS FILE;:

Page 7 of 46



A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: information concerning agency publicity. File may include press releases,
biographies, newspaper clippings, promotional materials, bulletins, broadcast scripts,
photographs, visual documentation, and other related items.

D. Retention: until no longer needed for reference, then transfer to archives for appraisal
and final disposal

[7/13/98;1.15.3.121 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 121, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.122 MOTION PICTURES OR VIDEO RECORDINGS:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: [RESERVED)]

D. Retention:

(1) Documentaty or training films produced or funded by agency: until informational
value ends, then transfer to archives for review

(2) Films acquired from outside sources for personnel and management training:
until informational value ends

(3) Routine surveillance footage or recordings: 30 days after date created

(4) Footage or recordings that document routing meetings: 30 days after date created
[7/13/98;1.15.3.122 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 122, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.123 NEWSPAPER RELEASES:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: includes news or press releases issued by the agency.

D. Retention: four years after close of fiscal year in which created, then transfer to archives
for review

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.123 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 123, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.124 PHOTOGRAPHS:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: photographic proofs and negatives of agency activities. Photographs may
include identification according to time, place, and agency activity.

D. Retention: until no longer needed for reference, then transfer to archives for review
[7/13/98; 1.15.3.124 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 124, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.125 PROPERTY FILES:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctiption: records of deeds and leases to real property owned or used by agency.
Information includes description and location of the property, maps, sale agreements, land
acquisition forms, deeds, lease agreements, and related correspondence.

D. Retention:

(1) Deeds and related documentation (property control copy): permanent. After
property is sold, disposed of, or relinquished, files may be transferred to archives

(2) Leases and related documentation (property control copy): six years after
termination of lease, then transfer to archives for appraisal and final disposal

(3) Deeds or leases and related documentation (agency information copy): SiX years
after termination of lease or six years after property is sold, or disposed of, or relinquished
[7/13/98;1.15.3.125 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 125, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]

Page 8 0of 46



1.15.3.126 BUILDING DRAWINGS, PLANS, AND BLUEPRINTS:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: original of photographic reproduction of architectural plans or technical
drawings. Access to documentation of restricted or security areas (i.e., correctional facilities,
museum and archival vaults, etc.) shall be limited to authorized personnel only.

D. Retention:

(1) Property conttol copy: permanent. After no longer needed for reference, files may be
transferred to archives

(2) Agency information copy: until no longer needed for reference, then transfer to
archives for appraisal and final disposal

[7/13/98;1.15.3.126 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 126, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.127 SURVEYS OR MAPS:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: surveys or maps developed by an agency to carry out its mission and
function. Information concerns roads, property lines, corners, monuments, road marker
placements, structures, sites, and other related data.

D. Retention: until no longer needed for reference, then transfer to archives for appraisal
and final disposal

[7/13/98;1.15.3.127 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 127, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.128 MAINTENANCE SERVICE FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning maintenance services conducted for office or
department. File may include work orders, maintenance reports, related documentation,
correspondence, memoranda, service agreements, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Setvice agreements: six years after termination of agreement

(2) All other records: three years after date of last entry

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.128 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 128, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.129 SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning supplies and equipment. File may contain accounting
records, operating manuals, warranties, inventories, related documentation, correspondence
memoranda, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Warranties: six years after termination of warranty

(2) Equipment records, including operating manuals: until disposition of equipment
(3) Supply records: three years after audit report released

[7/13/98;1.15.3.129 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 129, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.130 SURPLUS PROPERTY FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records conceming surplus property and its disposition. File may contain
inventories, records of disposal, accounting information, related documentation,
correspondence, memoranda, etc.

b

Page 9 of 46



D. Retention: one year after disposition of property or three years after all audits are
released, which ever is longer

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.130 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 130, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.131 TELEPHONE BILLINGS FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: reference copies of monthly office telephone bills.

D. Retention: until audit report released

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.131 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 131, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.132 TELEPHONE LOGS:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: listing of telephone calls made by agency personnel for a particular time
period. Logs may reflect date, time, caller, recipient of call, nature of business discussed, etc.
D. Retention: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.132 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 132, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.133 WORK ORDERS FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: work orders submitted to maintenance office or physical plant

D. Retention:

(1) Reference copy (copy maintained by entity requesting work): until work completed
(2) Maintenance office/physical plant copy: one year after work completed
[7/13/98;1.15.3.133 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 133, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.134 CALENDAR OF EVENTS FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctiption: reference copies of agency calendars of events.

D. Retention: until superseded or obsolete

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.134 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 134, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.135 SCHEDULES OF DAILY ACTIVITIES:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records used to keep track of work-related events and commitments of
agency staff members. Record includes daily appointment books, calendars, and other
records indicating dates for meeting and work activities

D. Retention: until no longer needed for reference but no longer than one year after close
of calendar year in which created

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.135 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 135, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.136 LISTS OR DIRECTORIES:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: includes mailing lists, directories, rosters, and registers compiled by the
agency.

D. Retention: until superseded

[7/13/98;1.15.3.136 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 136, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.137 SPEECH FILES:

A. Program: administrative records

Page 10 of 46



B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: transcript of speeches given by agency personnel. Speeches concern
program procedure, work activities, and related concepts.

D. Retention:

(1) Executive levels (including elected and appointed officials): until no longer needed
for reference, then transfer to archives for appraisal and final disposal

(2) Non-executive levels: until no longer needed for reference

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.137 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 137, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.138 CONFERENCES OR WORKSHOPS ATTENDED FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records of conferences or workshops attended by office or departmental
personnel. File may contain agendas, programs, handouts, correspondence, memoranda,
related documentation, etc.

D. Retention: until no longer needed for reference

[7/13/98;1.15.3.138 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 138, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.139 CONFERENCES OR WORKSHOPS CONDUCTED FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records of conferences or workshops conducted by office or departmental
personnel. File may contain agendas, programs, handouts, reports, training materials,
critiques, questionnaires, correspondence, memoranda, related documentation, etc.

D. Retention: after five years, transfer to archives for appraisal and disposal

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.139 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 139, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.140 SIGNATURE AUTHORIZATIONS:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: record authorizing person to sign fiscal documents, personnel documents,
etc.

D. Retention: one year after close of fiscal year in which created

[7/13/98;1.15.3.140 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 140, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.141 ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE PROGRAM FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctiption: records concerning the administration of the agency's alcohol and drug
abuse program.

D. Retention: three years after close of fiscal year in which created
[7/13/98;1.15.3.141 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 141, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.142 OVERTIME FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records of overtime by office or department personnel.

D. Retention: one year after overtime accrual date

[7/13/98;1.15.3.142 NMAC - Rn, 1NMAC3.2.90.11.A 142, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.143 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION OR EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

Page 11 0f 46



C. Description: records concerning agency's affirmative action/equal opportunity program.
File may include regulations and guidelines, policies, reports, studies, correspondence, and
related records.

D. Retention:

(1) Annual plan: three years after date issued, then transfer to archives for appraisal and
final disposal.

(2) Regulations, policies, guidelines, reference matetials: until obsolete or superseded,
then transfer to archives for appraisal and final disposal

(3) Gtievance ot complaint files: one year after date case closed

(4) Compliance teviews: after five years, transfer to archives for appraisal and final
disposal

(5) Remaining records: two years after date created

E. Confidentiality: Section 10-15-1 NMSA 1978.

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.143 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 143, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.144 SEARCH COMMITTEE FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning activities of specially formed search committees
charged with recruiting new or replacement agency personnel. File may include resumes,
applications, correspondence, related records, memoranda, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Applications and records for individuals hired: transfer to personnel office when
individual accepts position

(2) Applications and records for individuals not hired: transfer to personnel office when
position is filled

(3) Unsolicited applications: transfer to personnel office when received

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.144 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 144, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.145 JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: written contractual agreement entered into between two or more public
agencies subject to any constitutional or legislative restrictions imposed upon any of the
contracting public agencies (Joint Powers Agreement Act, Section 11-1-1 to Section 11-1-7
NMSA).

D. Retention: 10 years after termination of agreement, then transfer to archives for review
and final disposition

[7/13/98;1.15.3.145 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 145, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002; A,
1/6/2002]

1.15.3.146 DISASTER RECOVERY FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning the preparation of a disaster plan and the organization
of salvage procedures for the agency. Records include the disaster recovery plan, salvage
procedures, information on training in disaster recovery techniques, etc. A copy of this file
should be maintained off-site. In the event of a disaster, all copies of this file shall be
retained until any or all investigations have been concluded.

D. Retention: until superseded by new plan or information

[7/13/98;1.15.3.146 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 146, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]

Page 12 of 46



1.15.3.147 BUILDING EMERGENCY EVACUATION FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning the safe and orderly evacuation of a building. Records
include evacuation plan, list of designated fire captains or coordination leaders, training
information, etc.

D. Retention: until superseded by new plan or information

[7/13/98;1.15.3.147 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11 A147, 10/1/20005 A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.148 INTERNAL AUDIT FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: internal audits of agency programs, operations, and of external contractors
and grantees. File may contain audit plan, entrance or exit conference documentation,
procedure questionnaires, correspondence, memoranda, supporting documentation, and
final audit report. This record series does not include agency's external audit report.

D. Retention: five years after close of fiscal year audited

[7/13/98;1.15.3.148 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 148, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.149 FINDING AIDS (INDEXES):

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: indexes, lists, registers, and other finding aids used to provide access to
records.

D. Retention: until superseded or until related records are destroyed

[7/13/98;1.15.3.149 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 149, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.150 PROJECT CONTROL FILE:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: memoranda, reports, and other records documenting assignments,
progress, and completion of projects. Record series does not include construction project
files.

D. Retention: one year after close of fiscal year in which project completed or canceled
[7/13/98;1.15.3.150 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 150, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.151 FEASIBILITY STUDIES:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: studies requested or conducted prior to the acquisition, installation,
implementation, or purchase of new technologies, equipment, properties, projects, etc.
Studies may be incorporated into other files (i.e., project files).

D. Retention:

(1) Studies requested or conducted by agency: five years after completion or cancellation
of study

(2) Courtesy copies received by agency: until informational value ends
[7/13/98;1.15.3.151 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 151, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.152 CODE OF CONDUCT:

A. Program: administrative records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctiption: prescribed standards which are peculiar and appropriate to the function and
purpose for which the agency or institution was created and exists. “All codes approved by

Page 13 0f 46



the governor shall be filed with the secretary of state and shall be open to public inspection”
(Section 10-16-11 NMSA 1978).

D. Retention:

(1) Agency copy: until superseded by new code

(2) Secretary of state: permanent

[7/13/98;1.15.3.152 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 152, 10/ 1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.153 - 1.15.3.200 [RESERVED]

1.15.3.201 INSURANCE POLICY FILE:

A. Program: risk management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning insurance coverage of agency property (buildings and
contents, equipment, automobiles, etc.).

D. Retention:

(1) Insurance policy: 10 years after expiration of policy, provided no claims or suits
pending.

(2) Claim files: three years after case close

[7/13/98;1.15.3.201 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11A 201, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.202 GROUP INSURANCE POLICY FILE:

A. Program: risk management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning insurance coverage of agency employees (health, life,
accident, and long-term disability).

D. Retention:

(D) Group insurance policy: 10 years after expiration of policy, provided no claims or suits
pending

(2) Individual employee policy holders' records (waiver and enrollment forms
applicable to group insurance in effect): three years after employee terminated or retired,
or three years after termination of effective period

(3) Claim file: until informational value ends

E. Confidentiality: claim files containing health information are confidential. (14-6-1
NMSA 1978)

[7/13/98;1.15.3.202 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 202, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.203 LIABILITY CERTIFICATES OF COVERAGE FILE:

A. Program: risk management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning insurance coverage of agency liability.

D. Retention:

(1) Certificate (policy): 10 years after expiration of policy, provided no claims or suits
pending

(2) Claim files: three years after case closed

E. Confidentiality: claim files containing health information are confidential. (Section 14-6-
1 NMSA 1978)

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.203 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 203, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.204 SURETY BOND FILE:

A. Program: risk management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning surety bond coverage of agency employees and persons
acting on behalf of or in service to the agency in any official capacity.

Page 14 of 46



D. Retention:

(1) Certificate (policy): 10 years after expiration of policy, provided no claims or suits
pending.

(2) Claim files: three years after case closed

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.204 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 204, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.205 WORKER'S COMPENSATION FILE:

A. Program: risk management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning workers' compensation claims against agency. File may
include legal opinions and briefs, court documents, transcripts, affidavits, photographs,
findings, recommendations, correspondence, related records, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Policy: 10 years after expiration of policy, provided no claims or suits pending

(2) Claim files: three years after case closed

E. Confidentiality: claim files containing health information are confidential. (14-6-1
NMSA 1978)

[7/13/98;1.15.3.205 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 205, 10/ 1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.206 TITLE INSURANCE POLICY:

A. Program: risk management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning the insurance coverage of titles of agency owned
property.

D. Retention:

(1) Policy: until property sold or disposed of, provided no claims or suits pending

(2) Claim files: three years after case closed

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.206 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 206, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.207 INSURANCE APPRAISAL OR SURVEY FILE:

A. Program: risk management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning insurance appraisal or surveys.

D. Retention: until informational value ends

[7/13/98;1.15.3.207 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 207, 10/1/20005 A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.208 MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEETS:

A. Program: risk management records

B. Maintenance system: alphabetical by chemical name

C. Description: records concerning safety information on chemical products used by the
staff. Material safety data sheet may contain information on chemical ingredients, hazards
identification, first-aid measures, fire fighting measures, accidental release measures, handling
and storage, exposure controls or personal protection, agency name or vendor name,
physical and chemical properties, toxicological information, etc.

D. Retention: 30 years after discontinuance of substance per 29 CFR 1910.1020(d) (1)
()®)

[1.15.3.208 NMAC- N, 1/10/2005]

1.15.3.209 - 1.15.3.299 [RESERVED]

1.15.3.300 ELECTRONIC INFORMATION SECURITY AUDIT FILES:

A. Program: information technology

B. Maintenance system: chronological by date

Page 15 of 46



C. Description: records documenting security audits conducted on electronic information
systems. Files may include risk assessment report, business process analysis, final audit report
and determinations, correspondence, etc.

D. Retention: five years from date of final report

E. Confidentiality: Portions of this record may contain confidential information pursuant,
but not limited to 44 U.S.C. 3544(a)(1)(A).

[1.15.3.300 NMAC- N, 9/24/2012]

1.15.3.301 DOCUMENTATION TAPE FILE:

A. Program: electronic records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: data processing tapes providing documentation for operation systems.
Tapes include data systems specifications, systems test documentation, file specifications,
user guides, output specifications, reports, and information retrieval data. Proprietary
software is confidential (copyright, protection of rights, 17 USC, section 102,106, and 117).
System test documentation for approved systems may be destroyed one year after
completion of testing.

D. Retention:

(1) Approved systems: one year after discontinuance of system, provided all magnetic data
files are authorized for disposal or transferred to new or alternate system

(2) Disapproved proposed systems: one year after date of final action
[7/13/98;1.15.3.301 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 301, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.302 OPERATIONS SYSTEM BACKUP:

A. Program: electronic records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: operations system backups contain data concerning agency's fiscal
operations and transactions, legal investigations and proceedings, studies, supply
management, personnel and payroll administration, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Annual system backup: erase or dispose of when data contained has met its retention
period provided approval to destroy data has been received from office or department to
which data belongs

(2) Quarterly system backup: after five cycles

(3) Monthly system backup: after four cycles

(4) Weekly system backup: after six cycles

(5) Daily system backup: after eight cycles

(6) Incremental system backup: until completion of next full system backup
[7/13/98;1.15.3.302 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 302, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.303 [RESERVED]

[7-13-98; 1.15.3.303 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 303, 10/ 1/2000; A, 1/6/2002,
Repealed, 07/23/2007]

[Refer to 1.13.4 NMAG, Records Management Requirements for Electronic Messaging for
guidance on electronic mail.]

1.15.3.304 TEST FILES:

A. Progtam: electronic records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning test results for upgrades, migration or compliance. File
may contain system specifications, hardware specifications, computer printouts, notes,

Page 16 of 46



correspondence, e-mail, electronic logs, pre and post test results, bench mark results,
operating system version, application version, testing personnel name, etc.

D. Retention: two years after system goes into production

[1.15.3.304 NMAC- N, 7/22/2002]

1.15.3.305 COMPUTER SYSTEM ACCESS REQUEST:

A. Program: electronic records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: hardcopy input document used to request or modify a users systems access.
Record may contain user name, user number, request date, organization or unit identifier
code, position title, justification, written approval, user social security number, requested
login identity, system name, domain name, group name, restrictions, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Paper: until entered and verified into system

(2) Data: three years after no longer employed with the agency.

E. Confidentiality: portions of record may contain confidential information per 20 CFR
401.

[1.15.3.305 NMAC- N, 7/22/2002]

1.15.3.306 WEBSITE:

A. Program: public relations

B. Architecture: The overall design of a website, which can encompass hardware and
software, consisting of the how the components are designed, connected to, and operate
with one another. The architectural design also contains information on the development
and maintenance of informational or transactional websites that may contain documentation
on the platform and associated software necessary to operate and maintain an internet or
intranet presence.

(1) informational website: informational web sites contain information and do not support
or conduct business transactions.

(2) transactional website: transactional web sites contain information and possess the
ability to conduct business transactions.

C. Desctiption: records and information hosted electronically and accessible through the
internet or intranet. A website may contain information regarding the mission of an agency
or the reason for the establishment of a web presence. The website may contain replicated
information from an agency such as, names of staff, announcements of meetings, calendar
of events, press releases, annual reports, strategic plans, surveys, images, multimedia, audio,
transactional forms or pages (e-commerce), etc. The website may also contain unique
information found only on the website.

D. Retention:

(D) platform (software): one year after discontinuance of the system.

(2) web content:

(a) unique records or information: see the general or agency program schedule for
retention.

(b) teplicated information: until superseded or no longer relevant.

(3) web site structure:

(a) informational web site: one year after site is updated or changed.

(b) transactional web site: three years after site is updated or changed. [ Transactional web
sites contain or support transactions such as registrations, purchases, etc.]

E. Nota bene:

Page 17 of 46



(1) the use of contractors or another entity to host an entity's website does not release the
entity from the custodial obligation for the maintenance, preservation, and disposition of the
entity’s records.

(2) entities may wish to include a statement to the effect that the information provided on
the website is for informational purposes and that the official copy of record(s) can be found
at the entity. See subsection K of 1.15.3.9 NMAC of this rule for further information.

(3) because applicable statutes or laws may vary, entities may wish to consult with legal
counsel for applicable citations for websites conducting business transactions or containing
confidential information.

[1.15.3306 NMAC- N, 1/5/2004]

1.15.3.307 - 1.15.3.400 [RESERVED]

1.15.3.401 LEGAL CASE FILE:

A. Program: legal office records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning litigation . Records may contain complaints, court
order, motion, pleadings, notes, briefs, releases, investigative reports, investigative activity
logs, transcripts, closing sheets, correspondence, memoranda, etc. Case files involving real
property where the state has an interest shall be retained for 10 years after case closed or
until state no longer has an interest, whichever is longer.

D. Retention:

(1) Legal casefiles: 10 years after case closed

(2) Legal case files involving minors: 10 years after case closed or until any minor
involved attains age 21, whichever is longer

(3) Legal case files involving real property: 10 years after case closed or until state no
longer has an interest, whichever is longer

E. Confidentiality: per Sections 14-2-1 NMSA 1978, 32A-1-3.B NMSA 1978, 32A-2-32
NMSA 1978, 32A-3B-22 NMSA 1978, 32A-4-33 NMSA 1978, 32A-5-8 NMSA 1978, and
32A-6-15 NMSA 1978

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.401 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 401, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002; A,
1/6/2002]

1.15.3.402 LEGAL BRIEF FILE (BRIEF BANK):

A. Program: legal office records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: contains duplicate copies of legal briefs from legal case file.

D. Retention: until no longer needed for reference

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.402 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 402, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.403 LEGAL CASE LOG:

A. Program: legal office records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: listing of cases. Log may be destroyed when information transferred to or is
available on electronic media.

D. Retention: 10 years after all cases listed are closed

[7/13/98;1.15.3.403 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 403, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.404 LEGAL CASE INDEX:

A. Program: legal office records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: includes notations on activities related to case indexed.

D. Retention: 10 years after case closed

Page 18 of 46



[7/13/98; 1.15.3.404 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 404, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.405 LEGAL OPINIONS AND REQUESTS FOR OPINION FILE;:

A. Program: legal office records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records requesting legal office to render or issue an opinion. May contain
request, opinion, relating documentation, correspondence, memoranda, etc. File includes
attorney general opinions and requests for opinions.

D. Retention:

(1) Legal office (issuing entity): permanent

(2) Office ot department (requesting entity): until no longer needed for reference
[7/13/98; 1.15.3.405 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 405, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.406 - 1.15.3.500 [RESERVED]

1.15.3.501 OFFENSE OR INCIDENT REPORTS:

A. Program: security records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: shows offender's name, offender information, date and time and location
of occurrence, information on incident, reporting witness name, name of mvestigating
officer, narrative, etc. Includes bomb threat reports. Includes reports concerning victims of
alleged criminal offenses occurring on agency property.

D. Retention: five years after date of occurrence

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.501 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 501, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.502 DISPATCH RECORDS:

A. Program: security records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning the dispatch of agency security. Record may show
offense or incident reports, complainant's name, place of occurrence, address, date and time
complaint received, dispatcher's name, name of officer dispatched, etc.

D. Retention: 18 months from date of call

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.502 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11 A502, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.503 RADIO LOGS:

A. Program: security records.

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctiption: shows unit number, time and date of call, location of call, nature of call, etc.
D. Retention: one year after date created

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.503 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 503, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.504 BUILDING ENTRANCE LOG:

A. Program: security records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: shows agency name, building, employee identification, time in, time out,
time alarm reset, etc.

D. Retention: one year after date created

[7/13/98;1.15.3.504 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 504, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.505 SECURITY GATE LOG:

A. Program: security records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: record documenting the vehicles entering and leaving monitored or secured
area. Shows date, vehicle identification, driver identification, time in, time out, etc.

D. Retention: one year after date created

Page 19 of 46



[7/13/98;1.15.3.505 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 505, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.506 ALARM DATA RECORDS:

A. Program: security records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: shows date and time of alarm, alarm number, etc.

D. Retention: one year after date created

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.506 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 506, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.507 PARKING ASSIGNMENTS FILE:

A. Program: security records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning staff parking assignments.

D. Retention: until superseded or obsolete

[7/13/98;1.15.3.507 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 507, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.508 PARKING SERVICES CASHIER'S RECEIPT:

A. Program: security records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: copy of receipt issued for monies received for parking on agency property
D. Retention: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

[7/13/98;1.15.3.508 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 508, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.509 VEHICLE ACCIDENT REPORT FILE:

A. Program: security records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning each vehicle accident reported on agency property. File
may include medical records, offense or incident reports, affidavits, photographs, diagrams,
related documentation, correspondence, memoranda, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Fatal accidents: 25 years after date of accident

(2) Non-fatal accidents: 10 years after date of accident

E. Confidentiality: (Sections 66-7-213, 66-7-215 and 14-6-1 NMSA 1978)
[7/13/98;1.15.3.509 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 509, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.510 WRECKER LOG:

A. Program: security records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctiption: record of vehicles towed away. Record may show date and time, name of
wrecking company, operator, make of vehicle, license number, owner, location, reason for
towing vehicle, etc.

D. Retention: one year after close of fiscal year in which created

[7/13/98;1.15.3.510 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 510, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.511 VISITOR CONTROL FILE:

A. Program: security records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: registers or logs used to record names of outside contractors, service
personnel, visitors, employees admitted to areas.

D. Retention: one year after date created

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.511 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 511, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.512 KEY ACCOUNTABILITY RECORDS:

A. Program: security records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

Page 20 of 46



C. Description: records relating to accountability for keys issued.

D. Retention:

(1) For security areas: three years after keys turned in

(2) All other areas: six months after keys turned in

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.512 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 512, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.513 - 1.15.3.600 [RESERVED]

1.15.3.601 ACCESSION RECORDS:

A. Program: library records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning the acquisition of library monographs, films,
photographs, collections, etc. Record may show accession number, author, title, publisher,
date of publication, cost of acquisition, etc.

D. Retention: permanent

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.601 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 601, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.602 CATALOG OF HOLDINGS:

A. Program: library records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: record of library holdings in manuscript, printed catalog, or continuously
updated catalog forms.

D. Retention: until superseded

[7/13/98;1.15.3.602 NMAC-Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 602, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.603 BORROWER FILE:

A. Program: library records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctription: records that authorize patrons to borrow library materials (includes
interlibrary loans). May show borrower name, borrower number, expiration date, etc.
D. Retention: until obsolete

E. Confidentiality: Section 18-9-4 NMSA 1978

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.603 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 603, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.604 BORROWING OR LOANING RECORDS:

A. Progtam: library records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning the borrowing or loaning of library materials (includes
interlibrary materials).

D. Retention: until all borrowing or loaning transactions completed

E. Confidentiality: Section 18-9-4 NMSA 1978

[7/13/98;1.15.3.604 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 604, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.605 PATRON'S REGISTRATION FOR USE OF SPECIAL LIBRARY
MATERIALS:

A. Program: library records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctription: records concerning the use of rare, valuable, or other restricted library
materials. Records may show patron name, patron address, patron signature, etc.

D. Retention: five years after date materials used.

E. Confidentiality: Section 18-9-4 NMSA 1978

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.605 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 605, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.606 SELECTION RECORDS:

A. Program: library records

Page 21 0f 46



B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records documenting the selection of books and other library materials
(monographs, periodicals, films, etc.).

D. Retention: one year after date created

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.606 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 606, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.607 CENSORSHIP OR COMPLAINT FILES:

A. Program: library records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning library material censorship and complaints. File may
include evaluations by staff, patron's complaints, final decision documentation, etc.

D. Retention: five years after date of last entry

[7/13/98;1.15.3.607 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 607, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.608 GIFT DONORS FILE:

A. Program: library records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning the donation of publications and manuscripts to the
library. Comply with applicable provisions of legal agreement regarding confidentiality of
records concerning each gift.

D. Retention: five years after date created

[7/13/98;1.15.3.608 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 608, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.609 REQUESTS FOR REPRODUCTION OF COPYRIGHTED WORKS:
A. Program: library records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: records concerning requests for copyrighted materials. Records may
contain files or logs, records of requests made for copies or phonorecords of copyrighted
materials, records of the fulfillment of such requests, etc. (includes interlibrary loans).

D. Retention: three years after the calendar year in which created per United States
Copyright Office Circular 21, p. 19

E. Confidentiality: Section 18-9-4 NMSA 1978

[1.15.3.609 NMAC- N, 1/6/2002]

1.15.3.610 - 1.15.3.699 [RESERVED]

1.15.3.700 [RESERVED]

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.700 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 700.1, 10/1/2000; Repealed,
1/6/2002]

1.15.3.701 RECORDS RETENTION AND DISPOSITION SCHEDULE:

A. Program: records management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: schedules shows record name, filing system, record frequency, description
retention, confidentiality, and rule filing date.

D. Retention: until superseded by new schedule

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.701 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 701, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.702 STORAGE TICKET (SRC-1):

A. Program: records management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: shows agency code, shipment box number, shipment date, agency,
authorizing signature and title, records description, inclusive date, schedule item number,
destruction date, location, analyst signature, etc.

D. Retention: three years after close of calendar year in which records destroyed

Page 22 0f 46

e



[7/13/98;1.15.3.702 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 702, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.703 REQUEST FOR PICK-UP AND DESTRUCTION (SRC-2):

A. Program: records management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctription: approval request for destruction of agency records. Shows agency name
and location, date, record description, inclusive dates, quantity of boxes or sacks to be
destroyed, schedule item number, authorizing signatures, etc.

D. Retention: three years after close of calendar year in which records destroyed
[7/13/98;1.15.3.703 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11 A703, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.704 WITHDRAWAL TICKET (SRC-5):

A. Program: records management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctiption: record of withdrawals of documents from boxes held in storage with state
records center. Shows record description, shipment box number, location, approximate date
of return requested by and date, received by and date, return date, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Temporary withdrawal: three years close of calendar year in which records returned
(2) Petmanent withdrawal: three years close of calendar year in which records withdrawn
[7/13/98; 1.15.3.704 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 704, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.705 CORRECTIONAL INDUSTRIES MICROFILM SERVICES JOB
SPECIFICATION (SRC-73):

A. Program: records management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: shows agency or division, address, SRC control number, agency billing
code.

D. Retention: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.705 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 705, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.706 MICROFILM JOB TICKET (SRC 23):

A. Program: records management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Description: shows records sent for microfilming by agency, record description, received
by, delivered to, etc.

D. Retention: one year after close of fiscal year in which created

[7/13/98;1.15.3.706 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 706, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.707 MICROFILM INSPECTION SHEETS (SRC 23):

A. Program: records management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctiption: record shows report date, agency name, roll number, inspection date,
density, resolution, remarks or comments, inspector signature, etc.

D. Retention: one year after inspection date

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.707 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.11.A 707, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.708 CUSTODIAN OF RECORD FILE:

A. Program: records management records

B. Maintenance system: entity preference

C. Desctiption: records documenting the inspection of public records. File may include
procedures, custodian of record appointment, requests to review or copy documents, copies
of denial to review or copy documents, copies of memoranda extending time to respond to

Page 23 of 46



request, copies of memoranda stating that agency is not responsible for maintaining record
requested and is forwarding request to appropriate agency; etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Procedures and custodian of record appointment: until superseded

(2) Records of requests filled: until request filled

(3) Records of requests denied: one year after date denied

[7/13/98; 1.15.3.708 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.11.A 708, 10/1/2000; A, 1/6/2002]
1.15.3.709 METHYLENE BLUE TEST FORMS:

A. Program: records management records

B. Maintenance system: chronological by month and date

C. Description: records concerning the verification that the microfilm media meet the
standards for 1.14.2 NMAC. Form may contain agency or vendor name, address, contact
person, telephone number, test readings, test dates, agencies or offices processed for,
inclusive microfilm roll numbers, record series name and NMAC section number, address of
New Mexico records center and archives, correspondence, etc.

D. Retention: until retention of the original records has been met or until microfilm is
regenerated per Subsection F of 1.14.2.10 NMAC

[1.15.3.709 NMAC- N, 1/10/2005]

[The test documents the amount of residual thiosulfate existing in master microfilm
produced by or for agencies.]

1.15.3.710 - 1.15.3.800 [RESERVED]

1.15.3.801 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICE REQUESTS:

A. Program: information technology

B. Maintenance system: chronological by date

C. Description: records documenting requests for technical service assistance. Files may
include service request form, response to request, information on the use of computer
equipment for program delivery, security authorization form, etc.

D. Retention: three years after date request completed

[1.15.3.801 NMAC- N, 12/19/2011]

N.M. Admin. Code § 1.15.3

For Personnel Records

.15.7.101 PERSONNEL FOLDERS:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: alphabetical by employee

C. Description: can include but are not limited to personnel action requests. Salary
adjustment notices. Employee payroll information sheets, performance evaluations,
correspondence (includes disciplinary actions, commendations, recommendation, etc.).
General (includes applications, job descriptions, test grades, certificates, resumes, transcripts
disclaimers, etc.)

D. Retention:

(1) other department copies: three years after employee terminated or retired

(2) petsonnel department copy: 55 years after employee terminated or retires
[7/30/97;1.15.7.101 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.31.P 101, 10/01/2000]

>

Page 24 of 46



1.15.7.102 REJECTED APPLICATIONS:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: [RESERVED]

D. Retention: three years after rejected

[7/30/97;1.15.7.102 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 102, 10/01/2000]

1.15.7.103 BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION RECORD:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: can include but are not limited to application, authorization, investigation,
final report, etc

D. Retention:

(1) hited employees: three years after employee terminated or rehired

(2) individual not hited: three years after investigation

[7/30/97;1.15.7.103 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 103, 10/01/2000]
1.15.7.104 PERSONNEL EVALUATIONS:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: [RESERVED]

D. Retention: three years after issued

[7/30/97;1.15.7.104 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 104, 10/01/2000]
1.15.7.105 LEAVE RECORDS:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Desctiption: can include but are not limited to application for leave, leave balance
sheets, etc.

D. Retention: until audit report released for year in which records created
[7/30/97;1.15.7.105 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 105, 10/01/2000]
1.15.7.106 RETIREMENT RECORDS:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Desctiption: can include but are not limited to application, certification, changes,
refunds, financial ledger, correspondence, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) personnel department copy: three years after employee terminated or rehired
(2) retirement association or boatd copy:

(a) inactive employees: 70 years after employee's date of birth

(b) deceased retirees: six years after deceased

[7/30/97;1.15.7.106 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 106, 10/01/2000]
1.15.7.107 INSURANCE RECORDS:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Description: deduction authorization, request for change, waiver and copies of claims
correspondence, etc

D. Retention:

(1) deduction authorization, request for change, waiver: three years after employee
terminated or retired or three years after termination of agreement

(2) copies of claims, correspondence, etc.: until purpose is served

Page 25 0f 46

b



[7/30/97;1.15.7.107 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.31.P 107, 10/01/2000]
1.15.7.108 MISCELLANEOUS DEDUCTION RECORDS:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: can include but are not limited to records relative to credit union, savings
bonds, prepaid legal services, united way, garnishment, etc.

D. Retention: three years after final deduction

[7/30/97; 1.15.7.108 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.31.P 108, 10/01/2000]
1.15.7.109 REQUEST FOR CERTIFICATE OF ELIGIBLES:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Description: shows department name, proposed hire date, title position, name of
interviewer, kind of certificate, number of vacancies, authorization signatures, etc

D. Retention: three years after issued

[7/30/97; 1.15.7.109 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 109, 10/01/2000]
1.15.7.110 CERTIFICATE OF ELIGIBLES:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: lists applicants in order of score

C. Description: shows name and address, social security number, veteran's preference and
residence points, phone number(s), department comment codes

D. Retention: three years after issued

[7/30/97; 1.15.7.110 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 110, 10/01/2000]
1.15.7.111 PROMOTIONAL AND TRANSFER OPPORTUNITY NOTICES
(INTERNAL):

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: can show position title, range, salary, location, supervisor, qualifications,
deadline, etc.

D. Retention: three years after issued

[7/30/97;1.15.7.111 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.31.P 111, 10/01/2000]
1.15.7.112 EMPLOYEE NUMBER LOGS:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: can show number, name, date hired, etc.

D. Retention: until purpose is served

[7/30/97; 1.15.7.112 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 112, 10/01/2000]
1.15.7.113 EMPLOYEE LISTING (PERSONNEL ROSTER):

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: can list name, number, position, location, hire date, salary, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) other department: until new listing is issued

(2) personnel department:

(a) bi-weekly: until new listing is issued

(b) quarterly: five years after issued

[7/30/97;1.15.7.113 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC3.2.90.31.P 113, 10/01/2000]
1.15.7.114 CONTROL LOGS:

A. Program: personnel files

Page 26 of 46



B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Desctiption: include logs for controlling each step of personnel actions from initiation
through completion of action

D. Retention: until all actions are completed

[7/30/97;1.15.7.114 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 114, 10/01/2000]

1.15.7.115 ACTION REMINDER LISTING, MONTHLY PRINTOUT:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Desctiption: shows personnel actions due to occur during the upcoming month

D. Retention: until new listing is issued

[7/30/97;1.15.7.115 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 115, 10/01/2000]

1.15.7.116 JOB SPECIFICATION:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Description: shows job title, definition, supervision and guidelines, examples of work
performed, distinguishing characteristics, minimum qualifications, working conditions
D. Retention:

(1) other department: once new specification is issued

(2) personnel department: 10 years after job specification is replaced
[7/30/97;1.15.7.116 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 116, 10/01/2000]

1.15.7.117 JOB DESCRIPTION QUESTIONNAIRE:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Desctiption: shows depattment position, number, current and proposed classification
name of incumbent and supervisor, personnel department signature, description of work
performed, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) other department: until new listing is issued

(2) personnel department: 10 years after replaced

[7/30/97;1.15.7.117 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 117, 10/01/2000]

1.15.7.118 TABLE OF ORGANIZATIONAL LISTING (TOOL'S) MONTHLY
PRINTOUT:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Description: shows index of organizational units

D. Retention:

(1) other depattment: until new listing is issued

(2) personnel department:

(a) monthly: until new listing is issued

(b) quartetly: permanent

[7/30/97;1.15.7.118 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 118, 10/01/2000]

1.15.7.119 CLASSIFICATION STUDY FILES:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: special studies for proposed classifications; can include but are not limited
to job description, task statements, methodology, descnpt1on of study, salary surveys, relative
correspondence, etc.

D. Retention:

el

Page 27 of 46



(1) other department: three years after created

(2) petsonnel department: 10 years after study is superseded

[7/30/97; 1.15.7.119 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 119, 10/01/2000]

1.15.7.120 EMPLOYEE ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION, (FORM I-9) FILES:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: chronological by year, then numerical by identification number
C. Description: records documenting the employer's determination, verification and re-
verification of eligibility that an employee is authorized to work in the United States. File
may include for 1.9 (ie., employee name , address, date of birth, social security number,
attestation of c1tlzensh1p, etc.), copy of socil security card, copy of employment
authorization with photo, copy of driver's license, copy of birth certificate, copy of U.S.
citizenship identification card, etc.

D. Retention: three years from date of hire or one year from date of separation of
employment, whichever is later (8 CFR 274A.2)

E. Confidentiality: Portions of this record may be confidential pursuant, but not limited to,
5 USC, Section 552a (ie., social security number).

[7/30/97;1.15.7.120 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 120, 10/01/2000; A, 12/31/2012]
1.15.7.121 POSITION CHANGE REQUEST:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Desctiption: shows type and identification of proposed change, department
identification, approved or disapproved signature of personnel office and finance
department

D. Retention:

(1) approved request:

(a) finance department copy: five years after close of fiscal year in which created

(b) key punch copy: until key punched and verified

(c) other department: three years after issued

(d) petsonnel office: see item 1.15.7.117 NMAC

(2) disapproved request:

(a) other department: three years after issued

(b) second copy (if disapptroved by petsonnel office: three years after issued

(c) third (canaty) personnel office copy: until action is completed
[7/30/97;1.15.7.121 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 121, 10/01/2000]

1.15.7.122 LIST OF APPROVED CLASS SPECIFICATIONS (CLASSIFICATION
AND COMPENSATION PLAN):

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Desctiption: shows specification number, range, abbreviated title, full title

D. Retention:

(1) other department: until new list is issued

(2) petsonnel office: 10 years after replaced

[7/30/97; 1.15.7.122 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 122, 10/01/2000]

1.15.7.123 NOTICE OF CHANGE OF CLASS SPECIFICATION:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: shows manifest number, effective date, present class title and specification
number, nature of action, etc.

Page 28 of 46



D. Retention:

(1) other department: until new list is issued

(2) personnel office: 10 years after replaced

[7/30/97; 1.15.7.123 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 123, 10/01/2000]

1.15.7.124 PERSONNEL OFFICE MEMORANDUMS:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: [RESERVED]

D. Retention:

(1) other department: until rescinded

(2) personnel office: permanent

[7/30/97; 1.15.7.124 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 124, 10/01/2000]

1.15.7.125 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY AFFIRMATIVE ACTION
PLANS, ANNUAL:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: required annual by state and federal law, these are department assessments
of internal employment practices with specific policies and procedures designed to eliminate
the effects of institutional discrimination.

D. Retention: three years after issued

[7/30/97;1.15.7.125 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 125, 10/01/2000]

1.15.7.126 AGENCY EEO STATISTICS, ANNUAL PRINTOUTS:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Description: reports provided by the personnel office (or department generated) for use
in preparing affirmative action plans. They include but are not limited to minority actions
report, minority groups report, EEO profile of employee job categories.

D. Retention:

(1) other department: until affirmative action plan (item no. 1.15.7.125) has been issued
(2) personnel office: permanent

[7/30/97;1.15.7.126 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 126, 10/01/2000]

1.15.7.127 GRIEVANCE AND COMPLAINT FILES:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Description: can contain but are not limited to complaint and grievance,
correspondence, summary of hearing, exhibits, committee, decisions, transcripts, resolutions
depositions, etc.

D. Retention: one year after closed

[7/30/97; 1.15.7.127 NMAC- Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 127, 10/01/2000]

1.15.7.128 EDUCATION AND TRAINING FILES:

A. Program: personnel files

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Description: can contain but are not limited to material relative to education of training,
test booklets, answer sheets, lists of attending employees, course brochures, synopsis, copies
of contracts, relative correspondence, etc.

D. Retention: three years after course conducted

[7/30/97; 1.15.7.128 NMAC - Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.31.P 128, 10/01/2000]

b

Page 29 of 46



N.M. Admin. Code § 1.15.7

For Financial Records

1.15.5.9 - 100 [RESERVED]

1.15.5.101 BUDGET WORK PAPERS:

A. Program: budget records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: work papers used in preparing the appropriations request and operating
budget

D. 1§etention: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.10.F 101,7/13/98;1.15.5.101 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 101, 10/1/2000] '

1.15.5.102 BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS REQUEST:

A. Program: budget records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: final draft of proposed budget

D. Retention: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

[8/29/94;1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.10.F 102,7/13/98;1.15.5.102 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 102, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.103 OPERATING BUDGET:

A. Program: budget records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: printed copy of annual budget showing projected receipts and
expenditures.

D. Retention: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.10.F 103,7/13/98;1.15.5.103 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 103, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.104 BUDGET ADJUSTMENT REQUESTS:

A. Program: budget records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Description: standard form for the revision of an approved operating budget detailing
money amounts by line item with explanation and justification.

D. Retention: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.10.F 104,7/13/98; 1.15.5.104 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 104, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.105 BUDGET STATUS REPORT, MONTHLY:

A. Program: budget records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Desctiption: report generated by finance department listing approved budget by
category and line item. Information includes budget adjustments, amounts expended,
encumbrances outstanding, unencumbered balance, etc.

D. Retention: three years after close of fiscal year in which created :
[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.10.F 105,7/13/98; 1.15.5.105 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 105, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.106 - 200 [RESERVED]

Page 30 of 46



1.15.5.201 ASSESSMENTS:

A. Program: revenue records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: records concerning the various levies imposed by statute to fund agency
operations. This is a minimum retention required subject to longer periods listed specifically
in individual retention schedules (i.e., municipality schedule, county assessor schedule, etc.).
D. Retention: three years after close of fiscal year in which assessment is paid

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.20.F 201,7/13/98; 1.15.5.201 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 201, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.202 INVOICES (AGENCY):

A. Program: revenue records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: copies of invoices used by various offices/ departments supplying goods
and/ or services. Information includes vendor name and address, date of purchase, purchase
order number, invoice number, items or services purchased, amounts, total, etc. Copies of
department invoices may be filed in payment invoice file, 1.15.5.204.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Other department copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created
[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.20.F 202,7/13/98; 1.15.5.202 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 202, 10/ 1/2000]

1.15.5.203 RECEIPTS:

A. Program: revenue records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: department documents that record the receipt of any form of payment to
the government entity.

D. Retention: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

[8/29/94;1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.20.F 203, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.203 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 203, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.204 PAYMENT INVOICE FILES:

A. Program: revenue records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Desctiption: records concerning the purchase and payment of goods/services provided
by the agency. File may include buyer's purchase documents, copy of agency's invoice,
correspondence, memoranda, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Other department copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created
[8/29/94;1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.20.F 204, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.204 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 204, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.205 DEPOSIT SLIPS:

A. Program: revenue records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: receipt verifying the amount deposited into bank account or deposited with
treasurer.

D. Retention:

(1) Bank deposit slips: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Treasuret's deposit slips:

Page 31 of 46



(a) Treasuret's copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

(b) Finance department copy: one year after audit report released

(c) Other department copy: until audit report released

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.20.F 205, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.205 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 205, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.206 REVENUE STATUS REPORT, MONTHLY:

A. Program: revenue records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: report generated by finance department listing recap of budget adjustments
by category and line item. Information includes original revenue estimate, adjusted revenue
estimate, actual revenue year-to-date, unrealized revenue, current month revenues, etc.

D. Retention: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.20.F 206, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.206 NMAC - R, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 206, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.207 CASH REPORTS, DAILY:

A. Program: revenue records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Description: report generated by treasurer showing daily revenues deposited with
treasurer by department.

D. Retention:

(1) Treasuret's copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Finance department copy: until audit report released

(3) Other departments copy: until audit report released

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.20.F 207, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.207 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 207, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.208 REVENUE CONTRACTS AND GRANTS:

A. Program: revenue records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Description: records concerning contracts and grants received by an agency. Records
include but are not limited to block of contract or grants, negotiated grants, federal agency
grants, etc. Where there is required reporting of expenditures to a federal agency, retain
records for six years after termination of grant/contract or retain records for five years after
submission of final expenditure report, whichever is longer.

D. Retention: six years after termination of grant

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.20.F 208, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.208 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 208, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.209 - 300 [RESERVED]

1.15.5.301 VENDOR FILES:

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Description: files/listings of vendors with whom agency is currently conducting
business.

D. Retention: until superseded or until information is obsolete

[8/29/94;1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 301, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.301 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 301, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.302 REQUISITION FOR PURCHASE:

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

Page 32 of 46



C. Description: request forms from the various offices/ departments, which describe goods
or services to be ordered by the purchasing department. Information includes requisition
number, department name, delivery location, today’s date, date goods/services required, item
number, quantity, description, known suppliers, authorizing signature. Requisitions for
purchase may be filed in payment voucher file, 1.15.5.310 NMAC.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Other departments copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created
[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 302, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.302 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 302, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.303 PURCHASE ORDERS (PURCHASE DOCUMENTS):

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: office copies of purchase orders for goods and services paid for, or for
goods and services yet to be delivered. Information includes vendor number, project
number, date of purchase order, department, vendor name and address, shipping instruction,
quantity ordered, unit of issue, description of goods/services ordered, general ledger account
number, unit price, extended price, purchasing agent signature, individual who signs for
receipt of goods/services and date received, and notations regarding any shortages in
shipment. This record series includes both direct and contract purchase orders. Purchase
orders may be filed in payment voucher file, 1.15.5.310 NMAC.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Other departments copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created
[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 303,7/13/98;1.15.5.303 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 303, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.304 INVOICES (VENDOR):

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Desctiption: nvoices submitted by various vendors supplying goods and/or services.
Information includes vendor name and address, date of purchase, purchase order number,
invoice number, items or services purchased, amounts, total, etc. Vendor invoices may be
filed in payment voucher file, 1.15.5.310 NMAC.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Other departments copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created
[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 304,7/13/98;1.15.5.304 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 304, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.305 CONTRACT /AGREEMENT FILES:

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: records concerning contracts let through bid by the purchasing department,
technical/ professional service contracts, lease/rental contracts and agreements, etc. File may
include contract/agreement, bid information, contract/ agreement specifications,
correspondence, memoranda, etc.

D. Retention:

() Finance department copy: six years after termination of contract or agreement

(2) Putchasing department copy: six years after termination of contract or agreement

Page 33 0f 46



(3) Other department copy: six years after termination of contract or agreement
[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 305, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.305 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 305, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.306 CONTRACT/AGREEMENT LOGS:

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Description: lists of all agency contracts/agreements. Show contract/agreement number,
agreement contractor termination date, type of contract/agreement, etc.

D. Retention: six years after termination of contract or agreement

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 306,7/13/98; 1.15.5.306 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 306, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.307 BIDS/QUOTES:

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Desctiption: record of each bid submitted by vendors selling goods and/or services.
Information includes request for quotation, bid spread sheet and bid award letter. Awarded
bid may also be filed in payment voucher file, 1.15.5.310 NMAG, or in various contract or
project files.

D. Retention: three years after close of fiscal year in which bid is awarded

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 307,7/13/98; 1.15.5.307 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 307, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.308 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL.;

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: record of requests for proposal solicited by agency. Information includes
description, evaluation of proposal, evaluation criteria, overview, audit objectives, scope of
work, compensation, bid format, additional conditions, etc. Request for proposal may also
be filed in various contract or project files.

D. Retention: three years after close of fiscal year in which bid is awarded

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 308,7/13/98;1.15.5.308 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 308, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.309 VOUCHERS (PAYMENT VOUCHERS):

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: standard form used to authorize payment or reimbursement of expenses
other than payroll. Information includes vendor name and address, vendor code, agency
fund, quantities, description of goods/services, unit costs, total cost, authorizing signature,
etc. Vouchers may be filed in payment voucher file, 1.15.5.310 NMAC,

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Other department copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created
[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 309,7/13/98; 1.15.5.309 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 309, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.310 PAYMENT VOUCHER FILES:

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: organization's preference

C. Description: records documenting completed transactions authorizing payment for
services rendered, purchase of supplies or equipment, travel advance or reimbursement of

Page 34 of 46



work-related expenses incurred by an employee or public officer. Files may include
supporting documentation such as copy of vouchers, invoices, purchase documents, expense
reimbursement forms, travel reimbursement forms, receipts, travel advance forms, etc.

D. Retention: six years from close of fiscal year in which voucher created or in which audit
is completed

[08/29/94,01/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 310, 07/13/98; 1.15.5.310 NMAC - Rn,
1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 310, 10/1/2000; A, 12/20/2010]

1.15.5.311 WARRANTS:

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: canceled or voided warrants issued for payment of goods and/ or services.
Information include date, warrant number, to whom paid, amount, signature of finance
officer, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Canceled warrants: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Voided warrants: until audit report released

[8/29/94;1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 311, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.311 NMAC- Ru, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 311, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.312 CHECKS:

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: canceled or voided checks issued for payment of goods and/ or services.
Information includes date, check number, to whom paid, amount, signature of finance
officer, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Canceled checks: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Voided checks: until audit report released

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 312, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.312 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 312, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.313 VOUCHER PAYMENT WARRANT REGISTER:

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: record of warrants (checks) issued for payment of voucher. Register may
show warrant number, vendor name, vendor code, voucher number, voucher date, vendor
invoice number, fund (account) number, payment amounts, warrant date, etc.

D. Retention: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 313, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.313 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 313, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.314 TRIP TICKET FILE:

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Desctription: records concerning in-state and out-of-state travel requests.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Other department copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created
[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 314, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.314 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 314, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.315 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE FILE:

Page 35 of 46



A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: records concerning vehicle maintenance. File may include receipts for
gasoline credit cards, maintenance, repairs, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Motor pool copy: one year after audit report released

(3) Other department copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created
[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 315,7/13/98; 1.15.5.315 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 315, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.316 ENCUMBRANCE DOCUMENTS:

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Desctription: standard form for encumbering expenses. Shows line item, amount,
encumbrance number, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Other department copy: until audit report released

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 316, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.316 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 316, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.317 DETAILED LIST OF ENCUMBRANCES:

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Desctiption: monthly printout showing encumbrances by line item, vendor,
encumbrance number, and amount for previous month activity.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy:

(a) Year end report: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

(b) All other months: until audit report released

(2) Other department copy: until audit report released

[8/29/94;1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 317,7/13/98; 1.15.5.317 NMAC- R, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 317, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.318 SUPPLEMENTARY ANALYSIS OF PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCE:
A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: monthly printout showing year-to-date encumbrance activity.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy:

(a) Year-end report: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

(b) All other months: until audit report released

(2) Other department copy: until audit report released

[8/29/94;1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 318, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.318 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 318, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.319 CONTRACT TAX FILE:

A. Program: expenditure records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Description: records concerning the reporting to the IRS on monies paid out by agency
on technical and professional service contracts.

Page 36 of 46



D. Retention: one year after termination of contract, provided audit report released
[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.30.F 319, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.319 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 319, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.320 - 400 [RESERVED]

1.15.5.401 TIME CARDS:

A. Program: payroll records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Desctiption: record of hours worked by employee. Information includes employee
name, date, and hours worked.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance depattment copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Other department copy: until proved to payroll register

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.40.F 401, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.401 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 401, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.402 TIME SHEETS:

A. Program: payroll records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Desctiption: verification of the number of hours worked by employee. Information
includes employee's name, employee number, hourly wage, days and hours worked,
department head approval, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Other department copy: until proved to payroll register

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.40.F 402, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.402 NMAC - Ra, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 402, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.403 TRIAL PAYROLL.:

A. Program: payroll records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: weekly, bi-weekly or monthly printout showing breakdown of projected
employee payroll.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance/payroll department copy: until proved to payroll register

(2) Other department copy: until proved to payroll register

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.40.F 403, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.403 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 403, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.404 PAYROLL REGISTER:

A. Program: payroll records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: documents wages paid to employees for services rendered. Information
includes name of employee, social security number, date of check, hourly or salaried amount,
overtime, number of hours worked, deductions, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance/payroll department (year end payroll register): sixty years after date created
(2) Finance/payroll department (weekly, bi-weekly ot monthly copies of payroll
register): until audit report released

(3) Other department copies: until audit report released

[8/29/94;1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.40.F 404, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.404 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 404, 10/1/2000]

Page 37 of 46



1.15.5.405 EMPLOYEE YEAR-TO-DATE INFORMATION:

A. Program: payroll records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Desctiption: bi-weekly printout showing year-to-date totals by employee includes gross
pay and deductions, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Other department copy: until audit report released

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.40.F 405, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.405 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 405, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.406 VOUCHERS (PAYROLL):

A. Program: payroll records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Desctiption: standard form used to authorize payment (release of funds) for payroll.
D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Other department copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created
[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.40.F 406,7/13/98; 1.15.5.406 NMAC - R, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 406, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.407 WARRANTS (PAYROLL):

A. Program: payroll records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Desctiption: canceled or voided warrants (checks) issued for payment of goods and/or
services. Information includes date, warrant number, to whom paid, amount, signature of
finance officer, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Canceled warrants: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Voided warrants: until audit report released

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.40.F 407,7/13/98; 1.15.5.407 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 407, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.408 PAYROLL WARRANT REGISTER:

A. Program: payroll records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Description: registers summarizing the information on payroll warrants (checks) issued.
Information includes employee name, social security number, amount of warrant (check),
state and federal income tax deductions, other deductions, year-to-date totals per pay period,
etc.

D. Retention: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.40.F 408,7/13/98; 1.15.5.408 NMAC- R, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 408, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.409 W-2 FORMS:

A. Program: payroll records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: employer's copy of employee's total earnings and withholdings for the
calendar year reported to the internal revenue service. Information includes employer's
identification number, employer's name and address, employee's social security number,

federal income tax withheld, FICA taxes withheld, total FICA wages and state income tax
withheld.

Page 38 0f 46



D. Retention: five years after close of calendar year for which created

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.40.F 409, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.409 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 409, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.410 - 500 [RESERVED]

1.15.5.501 JOURNALS:

A. Program: general financial records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: department machine or hand posted books of original entry.

D. Retention: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.50.F 501, 7/13/98;1.15.5.501 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 501, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.502 LEDGERS, GENERAL:

A. Program: general financial records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: department machine or hand posted books of final entry.

D. Retention: six years after close of fiscal year in which created.

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.50.F 502,7/13/98; 1.15.5.502 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 502, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.503 TRANSACTION REGISTER, MONTHLY:

A. Program: general financial records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: computer generated equivalent to a general which shows the opening cash
balance, items adding to the balance in detail, items decreasing the balance in detail, etc.
D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Other department copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created
[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.50.F 503,7/13/98; 1.15.5.503 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 503, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.504 ACCOUNT TRANSFER ORDER:

A. Program: general financial records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: shows account names and codes, item codes, amounts to and from for the
transfer of cash. Record series includes special purpose transfer orders that include
encumbrance detail.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Treasuret's copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

(3) Other depattment copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created
[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.50.F 504,7/13/98; 1.15.5.504 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 504, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.505 VOUCHERS (JOURNAL):

A. Program: general financial records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: standard form used to correct (adjust) journal entries. Shows date, account
department, activity, line codes, reference numbers, amounts, etc.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Other department copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

Page 39 0f 46

]



[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.50.F 505,7/13/98;1.15.5.505 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 505, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.506 RECONCILIATION OF CASH TRAN SACTIONS, MONTHLY:

A. Program: general financial records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: record which reconciles the cash balance per the finance department
accounting with the cash balance per the treasurer's accounting and provides a detailed
listing of all outstanding items.

D. Retention:

(1) Finance department copy: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

(2) Treasurer's copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created

(3) Other department copy: three years after close of fiscal year in which created
[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.50.F 506, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.506 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 506, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.507 [RESERVED]

1.15.5.508 BANK STATEMENTS:

A. Program: general financial records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Description: records showing historical record of cash receipts and disbursements.
D. Retention: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

[8/29/94;1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.50.F 508, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.508 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 508, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.509 INVENTORY OF FIXED ASSETS:

A. Program: general financial records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED)]

C. Desctiption: records concerning holdings of furniture and equipment. Record shows
item description, item location, identification number, serial number, model number, date of
acquisition, original cost, etc.

D. Retention: six years after close of fiscal year in which created

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.2150.F 509, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.509 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 509, 10/1/2000] ‘

1.15.5.510 AUDIT REPORTS:

A. Program: general financial records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

C. Desctiption: printed report documenting the annual audit of funds. These reports,
prepared by an outside accounting firm, are categorized by the various offices and further
classified by accounts to which they relate. This series also includes semiannual and special
audits. Information includes balance sheet, summary of revenue and expenditures, cash
balances, statement of taxes, statement of delinquent taxes, statement of other receipts,
statement of fines and fees.

D. Retention: permanent

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.50.F 510,7/13/98; 1.15.5.510 NMAC - Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 510, 10/1/2000]

1.15.5.511 PETTY CASH FUND FILES:

A. Program: general financial records

B. Maintenance system: [RESERVED]

Page 40 of 46



C. Desctiption: records concerning the use of petty cash monies. File may include petty
cash request, petty cash vouchers, petty cash canceled checks, petty cash bank statements,
receipts, cash reconciliation, etc.

D. Retention: until audit report released

[8/29/94; 1/10/97; Rn, 1 NMAC 3.2.90.21.50.F 511, 7/13/98; 1.15.5.511 NMAC- Rn, 1
NMAC 3.2.90.21.F 511, 10/1/2000]

N.M. Admin. Code § 1.15.5

For disposition

1.13.30.9 ASSIGNMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES: Section 14-3-4 NMSA 1978
authorizes the commission of public records to appoint a state records administrator to carry
out the purposes of the Public Records Act. The state records administrator is responsible
for establishing records management programs within state government for the purpose of
ensuring the efficient and economical management of public records throughout their
lifecycle from their creation, utilization, maintenance, retention, preservation and final
disposition.

A. The commission of public records hereby delegates the authority to order the routine
destruction of public records, in accordance with adopted records retention and disposition
schedules, to the state records administrator.

B. The state records administrator shall prescribe the appropriate method of destruction of
public records.

C. The state records center and archives, in accordance with the rules established by the
state records administrator and the commission of public records, is the authorized facility
for the receipt, storage or disposition of all inactive and infrequently used records of present
or former state agencies.

D. The state records administrator has the authority to request any agency to designate a
records liaison officer to cooperate with, assist and advise the state records administrator in
the performance of his or her duties and to provide such other assistance and data as shall
enable the commission and state records administrator to properly carry out the purposes of
the Public Records Act (Section 14-3-4 NMSA 1978).

[1.13.30.9 NMAC- Rp, 1.13.30.8 NMAC, 06/01/2006]

1.13.30.10 DISPOSITION OF PUBLIC RECORDS:

A. Agencies shall ensure the proper authorized disposition of their records regardless of
format or medium so that permanent records are preserved and records no longer of use to
an agency are promptly deleted or destroyed based on retention periods established in
records retention and disposition schedules and subject to the written approval of the state
records administrator.

B. The records custodian for each agency shall assign one or more records liaison officers
the responsibility for implementing records management requirements for all agency records
at all levels and locations in all media including those received or created using electronic
mail. The records liaison officer is responsible for authorizing the storage and destruction of
his or her agency’s records.

C. Agencies shall secure the written approval of the state records administrator before
destroying any records or transferring records to the state archives.

Page 41 of 46



D. Agencies shall follow regulations issued by the state records administrator governing the
methods of destruction.

[1.13.30.10 NMAC- Rp, 1.13.30.9 NMAC, 06/01/2006]

1.13.30.11 ON-SITE DESTRUCTION OF PUBLIC RECORDS: Destruction of public
records may occur on-site at the custodial agency or through the state records center.

A. Agencies who choose to store public records on-site for the life cycle of the records shall
contact the agency analysis bureau of the state records center and archives when the records
have met their legal retention period.

B. The records liaison officer shall complete and submit the state records center and
archives request for disposition form. The records liaison officer shall indicate on the form that
the records are to be destroyed on-site. The request for disposition form shall contain but is not
limited to the following: agency code, agency name, division, contact person, address, e-mail
address, telephone number, fax number, destruction type, records title and description,
disposition trigger date, quantity of boxes or bundles, records retention and disposition
schedule section number, transfer to archives, record liaison officer signature and printed
name, analyst review, records management division director review, records center section
and archive section.

(1) The agency analysis bureau shall review the reguest for disposition and submit it to the state
records administrator for approval. The state records administrator shall either approve or
deny the request.

(a) When appropriate the state records administrator shall order the transfer of records to
the state archives for review and appraisal.

(b) If the records listed on the reguest for disposition have met their legal retention period and
are eligible for destruction, the agency shall receive a letter from the state records
administrator authorizing the destruction of the records.

(c) The state records administrator shall notify an agency in writing if the request for on-site
destruction is denied.

(2) Agencies that destroy records on-site shall certify the destruction in writing. A certificate
of destruction shall be submitted to the agency analysis bureau of the state records center
and archives. For legal and audit purposes, the records liaison officer(s) shall retain a copy of
the certification on file. Agencies shall use only approved methods for agency on-site
destruction of public records as identified below.

(a) Records that contain confidential or sensitive information shall be destroyed in such a
manner that the information cannot be read, interpreted or reconstructed by:

(i) witnessed shredding, then pulping through a bonded document destruction vendor, or
(ii) witnessed macerating through a bonded document destruction vendor.

(b) Records without confidentiality requirements shall be destroyed by:

(i) recycling by a bonded document destruction vendor,

(ii) shredding;

(iif) macerating or

(iv) witnessed dumpsite burial.

(c) Electronic records shall be destroyed pursuant to 1.13.3 NMAC, Management of
Electronic Records.

[1.13.30.11 NMAC- Rp, 1.13.30.9 NMAC, 06/01/2006]

1.13.30.12 PUBLIC RECORDS DELIVERED TO THE RECORDS CENTER FOR
DESTRUCTION: Agencies storing public records on-site may elect to deliver public
records that have met their retentions to the records center for destruction.

Page 42 of 46



A. Agencies shall contact the agency analysis bureau of the state records center and archives
when records have met their legal retention period.

B. The records liaison officer(s) shall complete and submit the state records center and
archives reguest for disposition form. The records liaison officer(s) shall indicate on the form
whether the records are to be delivered to the Santa Fe or Albuquerque records center for
destruction. The reguest for disposition form shall contain but is not limited to the following:
agency code, agency name; division, contact person, address, e-mail address, telephone
number; fax number, destruction type, records title and description, disposition trigger date,
quantity of boxes or bundles, records retention and disposition schedule section number,
transfer to archives, record liaison officer signature and printed name, analyst review, records
management division director review, records center section and archive section.

C. The agency analysis bureau shall review the reguest for disposition and submit it to the state
records administrator for approval. The state records administrator shall either approve or
deny the request.

(1) When appropriate the state records administrator shall order the transfer of records to
the state archives for review and appraisal.

(2) If the records listed on the reguest for disposition have met their legal retention period and
are approved for destruction, the request shall be forwarded to the appropriate records
center.

(3) Records center staff shall contact the agency to arrange a date and time for the records to
be delivered to the records center.

(4) The records description and the number of boxes delivered to the records center shall
match what is listed on the approved reguest for disposition form. Upon delivery if there is a
discrepancy between what is listed on the approved request for disposition form and what is
delivered to the records center, the shipment shall be rejected and sent back to the agency
for clarification.

(5) The records center shall prepare a destruction order for the state records administrator's
signature that lists the records approved for destruction that were delivered to the records
center.

(6) Records approved for destruction shall be destroyed according to the procedures
established in Subsection C of 1.13.30.13 NMAC for destruction of public records.

(7) The state records administrator shall notify an agency in writing if the request for
destruction is denied.

[1.13.30.12 NMAC - Rp, 1.13.30.9 NMAC, 06/01/2006]

1.13.30.13 DESTRUCTION OF PUBLIC RECORDS: The state records center is
responsible for the timely and efficient destruction of public records that have met their
retention periods and that have been reviewed and released for destruction by the agency's
record liaison officer and the state records administrator.

A. The state records center procedure for destruction of records (paper and microform)
stored at the state records centers shall be to:

(1) schedule quarterly, the destruction of all public records stored in the records centers that
have met their scheduled retention periods; and

(2) prepare a report notifying custodial agencies of records that have met their scheduled
retention periods and are eligible for destruction or transfer to archives.

B. Custodial agencies receiving notification of records eligible for destruction shall review
the report of records to be destroyed.

(1) The records liaison officer(s) shall notify the state records center of any records
scheduled for destruction which must be held and shall cite the reason for holding the

Page 43 of 46



records beyond the retention period, e.g., pending litigation, audit in process or audit
pending.

(2) The agency records liaison officer(s) shall approve the notice of destruction or the notice
of transfer to the state archives in writing and return it to the records center.

(3) The records center shall:

(a) prepare a destruction order for the state records administrator's signature that lists the
records approved for destruction; and

(b) prepare a transfer order for the state records administrator's signature that lists the
records approved for transfer to the state archives.

C. The state records center shall adhere to the following standards in destroying records.
(1) It shall destroy records that contain confidential or sensitive information in such a
manner that the information cannot be read, interpreted or reconstructed by:

(a) witnessed shredding, then pulping through a bonded document destruction vendor, or
(b) witnessed macerating through a bonded document destruction vendor.

(2) It shall destroy records without confidentiality requirements by:

(a) recycling by a bonded document destruction vendor,

(b) shredding,

(c) macerating or

(d) witnessed dumpsite burial.

(3) It shall direct the document destruction vendor to prepare and submit to the state
records center a certificate of destruction showing the date of destruction, the method of
destruction and the names and signatures of person or persons that witnessed the
destruction.

D. Destruction of source documents converted to alternative media shall comply with the
applicable standards to ensure reliability and authenticity prior to their destruction.

(1) Destruction of paper public records converted to microfilm.

(a) Agencies shall meet all requirements of 1.14.2 NMAC prior to destruction of
microfilmed paper records.

(b) Agencies shall comply with 1.13.30.11 NMAC for on-site destruction of public records
or 1.13.30.12 NMAC for public records delivered to the state records center for destruction.
(2) Destruction of paper records converted to electronic or machine readable media.

(a) Agencies shall meet all provisions of 1.13.70 NMAC prior to destruction of converted
paper records.

(b) Agencies shall comply with 1.13.30.11 NMAC for on-site destruction of public records
or 1.13.30.12 NMAC for public records delivered to the state records center for destruction.
(3) Destruction of machine readable records converted to microform.

(a) Agencies shall meet all requirements of 1.14.2 NMAC prior to destruction of machine
readable records.

(b) Agencies shall comply with 1.13.30.11 NMAC for on-site destruction of public records
or request destruction by the state records center.

(c) Agencies shall meet all provisions of 1.13.70 NMAC prior to destruction of converted
machine readable records.

E. Destruction of microfilm. When destruction of microfilm is required and the records
contained on the microfilm have met the required retention period, destruction of the
microfilm shall be accomplished by witnessed shredding.

F. Destruction of electronic media. When destruction of electronic media is required and the
records contained on the electronic media have met the required retention period,
destruction of the electronic media shall be accomplished by an approved method of

Page 44 of 46



destruction. For information on methods of destruction see Subsection G of 1.13.30.13
NMAC.

(1) For additional information on the destruction of non-records see 1.13.30.14 NMAC,

(2) Public records shall be destroyed in accordance with a current retention schedule.

(3) Supporting documentation (e.g., audit trails and results, certification records, etc.) shall
be disposed of in conjunction with the record(s) they support.

G. The destruction of an electronic record involves two components. The first component
includes the destruction of the information and the record medium. The second component
is where the information is obliterated but the electronic medium is retained because it may
still be useful. An agency shall select the best method for the destruction of an electronic
record based on the retention of the record, the medium and the nature or sensitivity of the
information. For a local hard disk, methods one and two that follow should be sufficient.
For other magnetic, optical or solid-state storage media, agency information systems staff
should be consulted. Agencies shall select from the following methods of destruction:

(1) erasure from electronic media and all back up media;

(2) emptying of electronic trash receptacle;

(3) witnessed overwriting of reusable magnetic media multiple times as recommended by the
US department of defense; ’

(4) witnessed degaussing of the magnetic media; or

(5) witnessed physical destruction of the media as recommended by the US department of
defense.

[1.13.30.13 NMAC- Rp, 1.13.30.8 and 9 NMAGC, 06/01/2006]

1.13.30.14 DESTRUCTION OF NON-RECORDS: Destruction of non-records is the
sole responsibility of the custodial agency and does not require the prior approval of the
state records administrator. That responsibility includes identifying whether the information
is a non-record or a public record.

A. Non-records that contain confidential or sensitive information exempted from disclosure
by statute shall be destroyed in such a manner that the information cannot be read,
interpreted or reconstructed. Non-records that contain confidential or sensitive information
shall be destroyed by shredding, macerating or recycling through a bonded document
destruction vendor.

B. Non-records without confidential requirements or that do not contain personal identifiers
may be destroyed in accordance with approved methods of destruction. To ensure
information is destroyed, use one of the following methods:

(1) dumpsite burial;

(2) recycling through bonded recycler; or

(3) shredding.

C. Electronic non-records that do not contain confidential or sensitive information may be
destroyed by physical destruction of the media or erasure of the data from all media
including back-up media.

[1.13.30.14 NMAC- Rp, 1.13.30.9 NMAC, 06/01/2006]

1.13.30.15 DESTRUCTION OF PUBLIC RECORDS HELD BY CONTRACTORS:
All public records or data created by a contractor or non-government entity for a state
agency shall be disposed of in accordance with the procedures established n 1.13.30 NMAC.
[1.13.30.15 NMAC- N, 06/01/2006]

N.M. Admin. Code § 1.13.30
Page 45 0f 46



Page 46 of 46



EXHIBIT B

RECORDS
DISPOSITION
FORMS



RECORDS DISPOSITION FORM

Complete at Intake

Department Records Title & Description

Records Liaison Officer's Name "print” |Records Liaison Officer's (signature)

Storage Location Quantity of Boxes/Bundles,
etc..

Archive Location

Disposition Trigger Date |Records Retention & Disposition Schedule Section #

Destruction Type, if permanent record, mark "Permanent”

Complete for Destruction Purposes

Records Liaison Officer's Approval (signature) Date
Director/Elected Official Approval (signature) Date
Records Custodian Approval (signature) Date
Destruction Date Actual Destruction Type

Cibola County Records Retention Policy Exhibit “B”



Resolution 21-35

Tyler Software Cleanup of County Capital Asset
Inventory




BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION 21-35

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ORGANIZATION OF COUNTY
CAPITAL ASSET INVENTORY OF REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY

WHEREAS, the Cibola County Board of Commissioners met upon
notice of meeting duly published at the Cibola County Administration
Building, 700 East Roosevelt Ave., Suite 50, Grants, NM 87020, on June
24th, 2021, at 5:00 p.m. as required by law; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-13 provides that the Board of
County Commissioners shall have the power at any session to make such
orders concerning the property belonging to the County as they may deem
expedient; and,

WHEREAS, currently the County has assets listed in both Tyler
Technologies Encode 10 and RCI, a management asset system; and,

WHEREAS, it would be most efficient if the listing of capital assets and
property were in one place to reduce duplication, inconsistency, and
confusion.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Cibola County Board
of County Commissioners that staff be directed to use exclusively RCI and
that property lists maintained elsewhere, including Tyler Technologies, be
removed.

Page 1 of 2



APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 24th day of June 2021.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez, Chairperson

Martha Garcia, First Vice Chairperson

Christine Lowery, Second Vice Chairperson

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Michelle E. Dominguez
Cibola County Clerk

Page 2 of 2



RFP 2021-005

Annual Financial Audit Service




0092 271 "WVHONI B SOOIY “HEVD)|
f— Eigleis)
ONUNNOIDY OTUWVHYT|
oovt 271 'SNOULNMIOS
ONLNNOLIDY 1SIMHLNOS,
IVLIOL ONVED ANVAWNOD
0S8 SSvd SZ1 0s $74 ort 08 (74 SSvd 08 SSVd sSvd IT1 NVYONI B SOOI “HuvVD
dNo¥d
otot ssvd 00z o o 002 06 062 S5vd 06 ssvd ssvd ONULNNI093Y OTIAVEY!
71 'SNOLLMIOS
00L ssvd 00Z ] 09 ost 0s 007 v ov SSvd Ssvd ONIINNOLIDV 1SIMHLNOS
SWioL NVALSSVd SINIOd 052 SINIOd SL SINIOd SL SAINIOd 002 SINIOd 00T SINIOd 00 TVA/SSYd SINIOJ 001 WV3/SSvd NV4/SSVd SINIDd
Wiio3 ipeciddy
(a1qiss04 Siuspedag i
: “BINsOPsIa SWjE[I pue | SUOREUIWISL Py i Huspedxy W04 jenusuRl]
000'1) 5355701 . L | et o SBUENST] FEUBHT g STVSOdO¥d
TORRGIR0S TOREIRTE 5 SUSIRIABSY | 76 KGE0E5 S FOSUUIIAES 6301 3TId j019m971 1
1041901 | s T AT | o
SYOLOV4/VI¥3 LD € JRqUIBW o)
U $Svd 00z sT oS 001 001 007 SSvd o5 SSvd SSVd ITT 'WYYONI 8 SOOI YHVD
4dNo¥o
st01 ssvd 05z st 05 002 o0t 00€ ssvd oor sve . ONLINNOIOY OTHWYYYT
OT1 'SNOILMIOS
<
8 SSVd 001 SL 174 002 001 [+ 174 Y4 SL $5vd SSvd ONUNNOLIDY ISIMHINGS
SIviol TVA/SSYd SINIOd 052 SINIOd SL SINIOd SL SINIOd 002 SINIOd 001 SINIOd 00€ TVLSSvd SINIOd 00T WVi/ssvd WVi/sSvd SINIKOd
g ipeciddy
{aiqissod FBusedg
OO s | o DR s | ey |- VY - Y e Wy [ pRe—" Siwsodoud
B e TUSGUAGS €367 J60d E jomuaT T
A4 19901 | e TE W | ews
SYOLOV4/VINILIYD T I9qUIBIN FnIWWO)
szt SSvd osT SL 174 L7418 00t 0s? SSvd oo SSvd SSvd ITIWYHONI 8 S99 WUV
dNo¥SD
S01 d 54 001
S5V, S &L {174 00t 542 Ssvd SSvd SSvd ONLINNOIOY OTHVEYS
371 SNOILMIOS
g SSvd asz S 00t W4 5.
SL ost 05t i 74 SSvd SSvd ONLINNOLIOV 1SIM
SW10L VLSSV SINIOd 052 SINIOd 5L SINIOd SL SINIOd 007 SiNIOd 00T SINIOd 00 BYASSYVd SLNIOd 00T uvi/ssvd UVi/SSVd SINIOd
o] Peosddy
{o1qiss0d UG
: SO SR PUE | SUOREUIANS] ET Vai Biepeay w0y jenwsues
0007 | s | T | G 5 e B = TUEE SBAT s $IVS040Ud
SuswbYY | 16 RGeS § TUSEISADS €507 01d & josma T
WA 10! | e TY T | o
SHOLDV4/VIHILIYD 1 PqUBK FMIWIWO)

SIDIAY3S LIANV TVIONVNIZ TVNNNY S00-TZ0Z 'ON d4d
133HS NOILVINGVL aId




Requisitions Over

$20,000

2021 Ford F-150 Crew Cab-Clerks Dept.
CTCL Grant Award Funding




REQUISITION ORDER

% Eﬁy DATE : DEPARTMENT: QUOTE OBTAINED BY:
A May 21, 2021
‘4»‘5%&' ’:;'"‘ v QUOTE #1 QUOTE #2 QUOTE #3
: VENDOR NAME:|Chalmers Ford
CONTACT NAME:
PHONE:{505-712-3913
FAX:
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST | EXTENSION
1 2021 Ford F-150 Crew Cab 37741.00 37,741.00
SUBTOTAL FOR SELECTED ITEMS 37,741.00 - -
TOTAL LABOR/ SERVICE COSTS - - -
TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX - - -
TOTAL SHIPPING/ FREIGHT COSTS - - -
GRAND TOTAL 37,741.00 - -
REASON SELECTED &d CO 7 <~
VENDOR Chalmers e AL C(Cf
CONTRACT/BID/RFP #| () () - XOOO0 =0 - OOOFS
ADDRESS 2500 Rio Rancho Blvd ESTIMATED DELIVERY
Rio Rancho, NM 87124 PURCHASE ORDER #
AGENT CERTIFICATION FUND NAME & LINE ITEM # AMOUNT
With my signature, | hereby certify that all : Be signatures are no Capital Outlay S 37,741.00
[ENDORSEMENT | : Lo
goods/services requested are necessary to obtained the p ase canno
properly conduct the operations of this ove forward 609-018-442-00028
department, and that all procurement has
been conducted according to purchasing
policies approved by the Cibola County DESIGNEE SIGNATURE FINANCE SIGNATURE,
Board of Commissioners. N.fh P . . =

PLEASE REMEMBER ANY REQUISITIONS OVER $500.00 NOVW/ REQUIRE 3 HARD QILIOTES. ANY REQUISTION $10,000.00 OR MORE WILL NEED TO GO ON THE AGENDA FOR
COMMISSION APPROVAL, IF USING STATE CONTRACT PLEASE LIST CONTRACT # ABOVE AS WELL AS THE FIRST 4 PAGES OF THE STATE CONTRACT, OTHERWISE IT WILL BE

SENT BACK



Chalmers Ford
2500 Rio Rancho Blvd
Rio Rancho, NM 87124

QUOTE TO: Cibola County
Natalie Grine
Natalie.Grine@co.cibola.nm.us

505.285.2539

PROPOSAL

PROPOSAL #1052021-2
PROPOSAL DATE{ May 20th, 2021

MEMBER PO #,
CES PO#
TERMS

Due on Receipt

SHIPPED TO: 2021 Ford F-150 Crew Cab STX Black SALES REP {Diego Martinez
SHIPPED VIA |Pick UP
F.O.B,
PREPAID or COLLECT
Sales Tax Rate: 0.00%
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
Statewide Price Agreement #: 00-00000-20-00121
1 Item #6 Truck 1/2 Ton, Crew Cab, Short WB, 4x4, 55V, S 29,391,001 & 29,391.00
Options:
D: Bed Liner, Black, Spray-On $ 595,00 & 595,00
L: Engine, Other: 2.7L Eco Boost 5 1,600001 % 1,600.00
N: Floor Covering, Carpet with Mats, Front and Rear S 345.001 % 345.00
Al: Rear Window Defroster 5 320.00 1 8 320.00
AU: Trailer Brakes - Factory $ 460.001 % 460.00
AV: Trailer Tow Package, Less Trailer Brakes - Factory S 995.00 | 8§ 995.00
BB: STX Appearance Group S 1,380.00 1 $ 1,380.00
BC: STX - 20 " wheel option S 1,100,001 8 1,100.00
BH: Running Boards - Black Platform/ Factory $ 980.00| S 980.00
BM: Rear Privacy Glass - Factory $ 200,001 3 200.00
BV: Reverse Sensing S 375.00{ % 375.00
Vehicle In Stock SUBTOTAL 37,741.00
TAX 0.00
FREIGHT
$37,741.00
DIRECT ALL INQUIRIES TO: PAY THIS
Diego Martinez AMOUNT

505.712,3913
Dmartinez@chalmersford.com




Natalie Grine
500 0000000000000 T T D

From: Diego Martinez <dmartinez@chalmersford.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 20, 2021 10:03 AM

To: Natalie Grine

Ce: Mike Michnuk

Subject: Chalmers Ford F-150 STX Black Crew Cab
Attachments: 052021-2 Cibola County.pdf

Good morning Natalie,

I hope you are doing well! Please see the attached proposal for one of the only
available F-150s we have on the lot! If you have any questions please let us know © we are
here to serve




e

Y

i

AR Y







Thank you,

Diego Martinez

Government, Commercial & Retail Sales
Cell: 505.712.3913

Office: 505.890.2183
Dmartinez@chalmersford.com

CH/\UVIERS

Kool Vodue, Read People, Rmiﬁmw

i, | COMMERCIAL
VEHICLE CENTER




DocuSign Envelope ID: CDB3DBYA-325A-4939-855A-3E348D596082

SPD_SWPA_Award_004_Rev_00_0220

State of New Mexico
General Services Department

Statewide Price Agreement

Awarded Vendor: Price Agreement Number: 00-00000-20-00088
12 Awarded Vendors (See pages 6-7)

Payment Terms: Net 30

F.0.B.: Destination

Delivery: See pages 6-7

Ship To: Procurement Specialist: Amber Sanchez s
All State of New Mexico agencies, commissions,
institutions, political subdivisions and local public Telephone No.: 505-827-0554
bodies allowed by law,

Email: Amber.Sanchez2@state.nm.us
Inveice:
As Requested

Title: Automotive Vehicles- SUV’s & Trucks
Term: March 5, 2021 thru March 4, 2022

This Statewide Price Agreement is made subject to the “terms and conditions” as indicated on
subsequent pages.

Accepted for the State of New Mexico

Valone Paulk 3/5/2021
Date:
Mark Hayden, New Mexico State Purchasing Agent

X This Agreement was signed on behalf of the State Purchasing Agent

Purchasing Division: 1100 St. Francis Drive, Santa Fe, NM 87505; PO Box 6850, Santa Fe, NM 87502 (505) 827-0472

MU




DocuSign Envelope 1D: CDB3DBYA-325A-4938-855A-3E348D596082

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division
Statewide Price Agreement #: 00-00000-20-00088
Page-2

Terms and Conditions
(Unless otherwise specified)

1. General: When the State Purchasing Agent or his/her designee issues a purchase document in response to the
Vendor's bid, a binding contract is created.

2. Variation in Quantity: No variation in the quantity of any item called for by this order will be accepted unless such

variation has been caused by conditions of loading, shipping, packing or allowances in manufacturing process and then
only to the extent, if any, specified in this order.

3. Assignment:
a. Neither the order, nor any interest therein, nor any claim thereunder, shall be assigned or transferred by the
Vendor, except as set forth in Subparagraph 3b or as expressly authorized in writing by the State Purchasing

Agent or his/her designee. No such assignment or transfer shall relieve the Vendor from the obligations and
liabilities under this order.

b. Vendor agrees that any and all claims for overcharge resulting from antitrust violations which are borne by
the State as to goods, services, and materials purchased in connection with this bid are hereby assigned to the
State.

4. State Furnished Property: State furnished property shall be returned to the State upon request in the same condition
as received except for ordinary wear, tear and modifications ordered hereunder.

5. Discounts: Prompt payment discounts will not be considered in computing the low bid.

6. Inspection: Final inspection and acceptance will be made at the destination. Supplies rejected at the destination for
nonconformance with specifications shall be removed at the Vendor's risk and expense, promptly after notice of
rejection,

7. Inspection of Plant: The State Purchasing Agent or his/her designee may inspect, at any reasonable time, the part of
the Contractor's, or any subcontractor's plant or place of business, which is related to the performance of this contract.

8. Commercial Warranty: The Vendor agrees that the supplies or services furnished under this order shall be covered
by the most favorable commercial warranties the Vendor gives for such to any customer for such supplies or services,
The rights and remedies provided herein shall extend to the State and are in addition to and do not limit any rights
afforded to the State by any other clause of this order. Vendor agrees not to disclaim warranties of fitness for a
particular purpose of merchantability. '

9. Taxes: The unit price shall exclude all state taxes.
10. Packing, Shipping and Invoicing:

a. The State's purchasing document number and the Vendor's name, user's name and location shall be shown on
each packing and delivery ticket, package, bill of lading and other correspondence in connection with the
shipments. The user’s count will be accepted by the Vendor as final and conclusive on all shipments not
accompanied by a packing ticket,

b. The Vendor's invoice shall be submitted duly certified and shall contain the following information: order
number, description of supplies or services, quantities, unit price and extended totals. Separate invoices shall be
rendered for each and every complete shipment.

¢. Invoices must be submitted to the using agency and NOT the State Purchasing Agent.

11. Default: The State reserves the right to cancel all or any part of this order without cost to the State, if the Vendor
fails to meet the provisions of this order and, except as otherwise provided herein, to hold the Vendor liable for any
excess cost occasioned by the State due to the Vendor's default. The Vendor shall not be liable for any excess costs if
failure to perform the order arises out of causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Vendor,
such causes include but are not restricted to, acts of God or the public enemy, acts of the State or Federal Government,
fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, unusually severe weather and defaults of




DocuSign Envelope ID: CDB3DB9A-325A-4939-855A-3E348D596082

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division
Statewide Price Agreement #: 00-00000-20-00088
Page-3

subcontractors due to any of the above, unless the State shall determine that the supplies or services to be furnished by
the subcontractor were obtainable from other sources in sufficient time to permit the Vendor to meet the required

delivery scheduled, The rights of the State provided in this paragraph shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any
other rights now being provided by law or under this order.

12. Non-Collusion: In signing this bid the Vendor certifies he/she has not, either directly or indirectly, entered into

action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with this offer submitted to the State Purchasing Agent or
his/her designee.

13, Nondiscrimination: Vendor doing business with the State of New Mexico must be in compliance with the Federal

Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Title VII of the Act (Rev. 1979) and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Public
Law 101-336).

14, The Procurement Code: Sections 13-1-28 through 13-1-199 NMSA 1978, imposes civil and criminal penalties for
its violation. In addition the New Mexico criminal statutes impose felony penalties for bribes, gratuities and kickbacks.

15. Items; All bid items are to be NEW and of most current production, unless otherwise specified,

16. Payment for Purchases: Except as otherwise agreed to: late payment charges may be assessed against the user state
agency in the amount and under the conditions set forth in Section 13-1-158 NMSA 1978.

17. Workers' Compensation: The Contractor agrees to comply with state laws and rules pertaining to Workers'
Compensation benefits for its employees. If the Contractor fails to comply with Workers' Compensation Act and
applicable rules when required to do so, this Agreement may be terminated by the contracting agency.

18. Submission of Bid: Bids must be submitted in a sealed envelope with the bid number and opening date clearly
indicated on the bottom left hand side of the front of the envelope. Failure to label bid envelope will necessitate the
premature opening of the bid in order to identify the bid number,

19. Contractor Personnel: Personnel proposed in the Contractor’s written bid to the Procuring Agency are considered
material to any work performed under this Price Agreement. Once a Purchase Order or contract has been executed, no
changes of personnel will be made by the Contractor without prior written consent of the Procuring Agency. Replacement
of any Contractor personnel, if approved, shall be with personnel of equal ability, experience, and qualifications, The
Contractor will be responsible for any expenses incurred in familiarizing the replacement personnel to insure their being
productive to the project immediately upon receiving assignments. Approval of replacement personnel shall not be

unreasonably withheld. The Procuring Agency shall retain the right to request the removal of any of the Contractor’s
personnel at any time.

20. Subcontracting: The Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the Price Agreement without the prior written
approval of the Procuring Agency. No such subcontracting shall relieve the Contractor from its obligations and liabilities
under this Price Agreement, nor shall any subcontracting obligate payment from the Agency.

21. Records and Audit: The Contractor shall maintain detailed time and expenditure records that indicate the date, time,
nature, and cost of services rendered during this Price Agreement’s term and effect, and retain them for a period of three
(3) years from the date of final payment under this Price Agreement. The records shall be subject to inspection by the
Agency, State Purchasing Division, Department of Finance and Administration, and for Information Technology contracts,
State Chief Information Officer. The Agency shall have the right to audit billings, both before and after payment, Payment
for services under this Price Agreement shall not foreclose the right of the Agency to recover excessive or illegal payments.

22. Subcontracts: The foregoing requirements for Contractor Personnel, Subcontracting, and Audit shall be inserted into
all subcontracts from the prime contractor to the subcontractor.




DocuSign Envelope 1D: CDB3DB9A-325A-4939-855A-3E348D596082

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division
Statewide Price Agreement #: 00-00000-20-00088
Page-4

New Mexico Employees Health Coverage

A. If Contractor has, or grows to, six (6) or more employees who work, or who are expected to work, an average
of at least 20 hours per week over a six (6) month period during the term of the contract, Contractor certifies, by signing
this agreement, to have in place, and agrees to maintain for the term of the contract, health insurance for its New Mexico
Employees and offer that health insurance to its New Mexico Employees if the expected annual value in the aggregate of
any and all contracts between Contractor and the State exceeds $250,000 doflars.

B. Contractor agrees to maintain a record of the number of its New Mexico Employees who have (a) accepted
health insurance; (b) declined health insurance due to other health insurance coverage already in place; or (c) declined
health insurance for other reasons. These records are subject to review and audit by a representative of the state,

C. Contractor agrees to advise all of its New Mexico Employees of the availability of State publicly financed
health care coverage programs by providing each of its New Mexico Employees with, as a minimum, the following web
site link to additional information: hitps:/bewellnm.com.

D. For purposes of this Paragraph, the following terms have the following meanings:

(1) “New Mexico Employee” means any resident of the State of New Mexico employed by Contractor who
performs the majority of the employee’s work for Contractor within the State of New Mexico, regardless
of the location of Contractor’s office or offices; and

(2) “offer” means to make available, without unreasonable restriction, enrollment in one or more health
coverage plans and to actively seek and encourage participation in order to achieve the goals of Executive
Order 2007-049. This could include State publicly financed public health coverage programs such as
Insure New Mexico!

Statewide Price Agreement

Article I — Statement of Work

Under the terms and conditions of this Price Agreement all State of New Mexico agencies, commissions, institutions,
political subdivisions and local public bodies allowed by law may issue orders for items and/or services described herein. The
terms and conditions of this Price Agreement shall form a part of each order issued hereunder.

The items and/or services to be ordered shall be as listed under Article IX - Price Schedule. All orders issued hereunder will
bear both an order number and this Price Agreement number. It is understood that no guarantee or warranty is made or
implied by the New Mexico State Purchasing Agent, his/her designee or the user that any order for any definite quantity will
be issued under this Price Agreement, The Contractor is required to accept the order and furnish the items and/or services in
accordance with the articles contained hereunder for the quantity of each order.

Article II - Term ‘
The term of this Price Agreement, for issuance of orders, shall be as indicated in the specifications.

Article 111 - Specifications

Items and/or services furnished hereunder shall conform to the requirements of specifications and/or drawings applicable to
items listed under Article IX-Price Schedule. Orders issued against this schedule will show the applicable Price Agreement
item(s), number(s), and price(s); however they may not describe the item(s) fully,

Article IV — Shipping and Billing Instructions

Contractor shall ship in accordance with the following instructions: Shipment shall be made only against specific orders
which the user may place with the Contractor during the term; The Contractor shall enclose a packing list with each shipment
listing the order number, price agreement number and the commercial parts number (if any) for each item; Delivery shall be

made as indicated on pagel. If vendor is unable to meet stated delivery the State Purchasing Agent or his/her designee must
be notified.




DocuSign Envelope 1D: CDB3DB9A-325A-4939-855A-3E348D596082

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division
Statewide Price Agreement #: 00-00000-20-00088

Page-6
Awarded Vendors:
(AA) 0000047770
Albuquerque Motor Company
dba Melloy Dodge
9621 Coors Blvd NW Delivery: 120-180 Days
Albuquerque, NM 87114

(505) 239-2811
Jeassell@melloydodge.com

(AB) 0000049896
Bob Turner's Ford Country
dba Power Ford

1101 Montano Rd NE Delivery:

Albuquerque, NM 87107
(505) 449-1268

Mbeltran@myforddealer.com

(AC) 0000054961
Bruckner Truck Sales, Inc.
8101 Daytona Rd.

Albuquerque, NM 87121 Delivery:

(505) 839-5907
rlinson@brucknertruck.com
(AD) 0000045857

Clark Truck Equipment Co.
PO Box 3483

Albuquerque, NM 87190 Delivery:

(505) 880-8222
Kevin@CTE-NM.com

(AE) 0000094627

Construction Truck Equipment, LLC
PO Box 16020

Albuquerque, NM 87191 Delivery:

(505) 292-8018
dfrederick747@gmail.com
(AF) 0000051541

Don Chalmers Ford

dba MHQ of NM

2500 Rio Rancho Blvd SE Delivery:

Rio Rancho, NM 87124
(505) 890-2153

Tcullen@chalmersford.com

30-150 Days depending on
Specification & Configuration

As Requested

As Required

As requested- subject to Ford
Motor Company production
schedules



